2014 – 2018 Contract Agreement
Between
The Garden City Education Association
And
The Board of Education
Of
The School District of the City of Garden City
Michigan

PREAMBLE

This Agreement entered into this 10th day of August, 2015, by and between the Board of Education of the School District of the City of Garden City of Garden City, Michigan, hereinafter called the "Board," and the Garden City Education Association, hereinafter called the "Association."

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS the Board and the Association recognize and declare that providing a quality education for the children of Garden City is their mutual aim and that the character of such education depends predominantly upon the quality and morale of the teaching service, AND WHEREAS the members of the teacher profession are particularly qualified to assist in formulating policies and programs designed to improve educational standards, AND WHEREAS the Board has statutory obligation, pursuant to Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965, to bargain with the Association as the representative of its teaching personnel with respect to hours, wages, terms and conditions of employment, AND WHEREAS the parties, following extended and deliberate professional negotiations, have reached understandings which they desire to confirm in this Agreement. following mutual covenants are hereby agreed to by the Board and by the Association.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE AND		-
WITNESSETH	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	. 1A
ARTICLE I	Recognition	. 1
ARTICLE II	Association and Member Rights	. 2
ARTICLE III	Professional Compensation	. 5
ARTICLE IV	Full Time Teaching Loads	. 10
ARTICLE V	Full-Time Member Assignment	. 12
ARTICLE VI	Teaching Conditions	. 19
ARTICLE VII	Full-Time Teaching Hours	
ARTICLE VIII	Teacher Discipline	. 29
ARTICLE IX	Garden City Retirement and Death Benefits	. 31
ARTICLE X	Teacher Evaluation	
ARTICLE XI	Protection of Members	
ARTICLE XII	Negotiation Procedures	. 39
ARTICLE XIII	Grievance Procedures	. 41
ARTICLE XIV	Leaves	. 46
ARTICLE XV	School Calendar	. 55
ARTICLE XVI	Staff/Curriculum Development Council	58
ARTICLE XVII	Part-Time Members	. 60
ARTICLE XVIII	Special Teaching Assignments	. 63
ARTICLE XIX	Professional Improvement	. 64
ARTICLE XX	Maintenance of Professional Standards	. 66
ARTICLE XXI	Seniority, Layoff, Recall, Consolidation	. 67
ARTICLE XXII	Miscellaneous Provisions	. 71

TABLE OF CONTENTS - Continued

SCHEDULE A Teacher Salary Schedule 2014-2018

SCHEDULE B Co-Curricular Pay Schedule

SCHEDULE C Insurance

SCHEDULE D School Schedules

SCHEDULE E Official School Calendar

APPENDIX A SAMPLE - Probationary Contract

APPENDIX B SAMPLE - Regular Tenure Contract

APPENDIX C SAMPLE - Special Certificated Teacher's Contract

APPENDIX D SAMPLE - Agreement and Acknowledgment

APPENDIX D1 Letter of Understanding AI (5-year clause)

APPENDIX E 2011-2014 GCEA Schedule A

ATTACHMENT Evaluation Process

ARTICLE I - Recognition

- Α. The Board of Education of the School District of the City of Garden City, Michigan, (herein called the Board) hereby recognizes the Garden City Education Association (herein called the Association) as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative, as defined in Section 11, of Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965, for all certificated and/or professional personnel under annual contract, on layoff status, on reserve status, or on leave as provided in this Agreement, and certificated continuing education personnel in credit programs employed by the Board. By way of example this bargaining unit includes, but is not limited to: counselors, psychologists, social workers. coordinators, part-time teachers involved in credit programs, driver education. librarians, consultants, G E D teachers, homebound teachers, alternative learning center teachers, program instructional teachers, Summer DLP, teachers of academic development and remedial programs, A.B.E., E.S.L., persons involved in curriculum development and evaluation programs unless otherwise excluded, all other professional support staff, all positions listed in Schedule B of this Agreement and all other persons whose job includes instruction or other duties regularly performed by bargaining unit members, both certified and non-certified, and all other certified persons unless specifically excluded by this agreement or any letter of agreement executed between the parties. Such representation shall include all personnel assigned to newly created teaching and/or professional positions unless the Board and Association shall agree in advance that such positions are principally supervisory and/or administrative. Such representation shall specifically exclude: superintendents, associate superintendents, executive directors, directors, supervisors, principals, associate principals, assistant principals, leisure time teachers, daily substitutes, non-certified personnel employed on an hourly basis, and preschool, and any other person with any responsibility for supervision of professional and/or non-professional personnel.
- B. The term "member" when used hereinafter in this Agreement, shall refer to all employees in the unit defined in "A" above. Any reference to male or female will be understood to be inclusive of all members of the Association.
- C. The Board agrees not to negotiate with any organizations other than the Association, in regard to this or any future contract of the bargaining unit members, for the duration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE II - Association and Member Rights

- A. Pursuant to Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965, the Board agrees that every member included in the bargaining or negotiation unit defined in ARTICLE I has the right to join and support the Association for the purpose of engaging in collective bargaining or negotiations with the Board. As a duly elected body exercising governmental powers under the laws (or color of law) of the State of Michigan, the Board agrees that it will not, directly or indirectly, discourage, deprive, or coerce any member from enjoying any rights conferred by Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965, other laws of the State of Michigan, or laws of the United States. The Board will not discriminate against any member with respect to hours, wages, or any other terms or conditions of employment by reason of: membership in the Association, participation in the Association's lawful activities, participation in collective bargaining or negotiations with the Board, or instituting a grievance(s), complaint or proceeding under this Agreement. Member rights regarding Board discrimination against a member for participation in statutorily-protected activities are specifically protected in Section B of this ARTICLE.
- B. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to deny or restrict any member rights granted under the laws of the State of Michigan and/or the laws of the United States. The rights granted to members in this Agreement shall be deemed to be in addition to those provided by the laws of the State of Michigan and/or the laws of the United States and members may enforce such rights in courts of competent jurisdiction.
- C. The Association and its members shall have the right to use equipment, materials and school building facilities for meetings concerning Association business, provided that such use does not conflict with prior scheduled activities and provided that no cost to the Board arises from such use or that such cost for such use shall be reimbursed to the Board by the Association. Bulletin board space shall be made available for use by the Association in each building's faculty workroom. Such space shall not exceed one-half (1/2) the available bulletin board space in each such workroom. The Association shall endeavor to keep such neat, orderly, and current. Where bulletin board space may not be available for use by part-time members, information will be dispersed to members through a cooperative effort between the Association and the Board.

- D. During working hours the Association will use individual member mailboxes and district e-mail as the sole means of distributing written materials to members in school buildings. All items so distributed will carry the title or letterhead of the Association. The Association assumes full responsibility and legal liability for all written materials it distributes. This allowance to so distribute written materials does not imply full or partial agreement by the Board as to content or validity of information contained in such written materials. All written materials distributed by the Association under the terms of this Agreement will be removed only by the members to whom the individual mailboxes have been assigned. All other materials distributed to/by members within school buildings shall be of a personal non-commercial nature not related to hours, wages, or conditions of employment, or shall be directly related to instructional program.
- E. No member shall be prevented from wearing insignia of membership in the Association either on or off school premises so long as such does not interfere with the normal conduct of scheduled instructional programs.
- F. The Association may have announcements read over the intercom system in each school building. The content of such announcements shall be limited to the date, time, place, and group involved in Association meetings. Such announcements are to be made at times regularly scheduled for announcements within school buildings.
- G. Duly authorized representatives of the Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property, provided that such does not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations or infringe upon any scheduled classroom activities.
- H. The Board agrees to furnish the Association, in response to request, all reasonably available information concerning the financial resources of the District, tentative budgetary requirements, allocations, and such other information as may assist the Association in developing intelligent, accurate, informed, and constructive programs on behalf of members, provided that such information has been presented to the Board and has been approved for release by the Board.
- I. The Board will notify the Association of any major budgetary, curriculum, and/or personnel changes which are proposed or under consideration so as to give the Association an opportunity to provide input regarding these changes.

Major budgetary, curriculum, and/or personnel changes shall be defined to include, but not be limited to:

- 1. All layoff, recall and hiring of personnel
- 2. Administrative changes
- 3. Changes in course offerings, textbooks and related materials.
- 4. Changes in district testing
- 5. Changes in district revenue
- 6. Changes in allocated expenditures
- 7. Enrollment projections
- 8. Demographics
- J. Members shall be entitled to full rights of citizenship, and no religious or political activities (or lack of such activities) of any member, which do not interfere with or disrupt prescribed instructional programs or normal school operations and/or procedures, shall be grounds for any discipline or discrimination with respect to the professional employment of such member. The private and personal life of any member, which does not interfere with or disrupt prescribed instructional programs or normal school operations and/or procedures, is not within the appropriate concern or attention of the Board. Nothing in this Agreement is to be construed as in any way restricting the rights of the Board under the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act.
- K. The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied without regard to race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, sex, marital status, handicap, weight, or membership in or association with the activities of the Association.
- L. The Board shall not distribute, in any form, personal information, i.e., name, address, phone, evaluations, etc. to public or private concern(s) except as required by national, state or local statutes or as necessary to operate the school district, unless permission is granted by the member.
- M. The rights granted herein to the Association shall not be granted or extended to any competing labor organizations.
- N. The Board shall provide in-district mail (including all consortium buildings) pick up and delivery at least once every two weeks and shall endeavor to provide mail weekly.

ARTICLE III - Professional Compensation

- A. The salaries of members covered by this Agreement are set forth in this Article and in Schedules A and B, which are attached to and incorporated into this Agreement. Such salary schedules shall remain in effect during the term of this Agreement.
- B. The full-time members' salary schedule, Schedule A, is based on a school year, as outlined in Article XV of this Agreement, and shall end the second full week in June or as soon thereafter as State attendance requirements for students are met and covers scheduled work days only. Both the Board and the Association are cognizant of the possibility that an energy emergency could change the school calendar and schedule. If such an emergency is declared, a new school calendar and/or schedule shall be formulated by mutual agreement.
- C. When it is necessary to compute a daily rate for full-time members for the purposes of pay dock and/or balancing to contract, the contractual salary divided by the number of work days scheduled will be used. Scheduled member work days are indicated in Schedule E. Further, to determine the hourly rate for these same purposes, the full-time daily rate will be divided by the number of normal member daily work hours (excluding lunch periods). Normal full-time member daily work hours are indicated in Schedule D.
- D. The employer shall provide a pay option form to each full time member by May 15 of each year, and each full-time member shall return the form stating his or her election of pay option no later than June 1 of the year preceding the affected year.
- E. l. A change of salary for a full-time member due to a higher level of educational attainment shall only be granted for semester hour credits earned from colleges of education as follows:
 - a. Colleges or universities who are members of:
 Middle States Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools
 New England Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools
 - North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary Schools
 Northwest Association of Secondary and Higher Schools
 Southern Association of Colleges and Schools
 Western Association of Schools and Colleges
 - b. Credits earned at other four (4) year institutions in Michigan if said credits are accepted for transfer by an accredited teacher training college or university and are so reflected on that school's official transcripts.

- c. Credits from other four (4) year, out-of-state teacher education institutions not included in "a" and "b" above, shall be reviewed and considered by the Superintendent or his designee for acceptance or rejection.
- d. Credit hours obtained by members at colleges and universities, other than colleges of education covered by "a", "b" and "c" above, may be approved for advancement on the salary schedule if such directly relate to the teaching area of the individual member involved and have been approved in writing by the Superintendent or his designee prior to enrollment.
- 2. Credit hours earned before the beginning date of each semester shall be honored only if official transcripts or a letter of authority indicating the completion of academic credits, shall be received by the Personnel Office on or before November 1 or March 1 of any school year, and shall be retroactive to the beginning date of that respective semester. Official notification received after either of these indicated dates will not result in any change in salary status until the next following school semester, and shall not be retroactively considered.
- 3. Credit hours mean semester hours.
- 4. Each earned degree awarded which qualifies the staff member for salary compensation cuts off all previously earned credits. All such previously earned credits will be inapplicable for amassing credit hours for salary adjustments to be based on past degree hours of credit unless said credit hours are later accepted for use to fulfill requirements for an advanced degree.
- F. Members required in the course of their work to drive personal automobiles shall be compensated (starting with the 1994-95 school year) at the rate established by the IRS by the most direct route. This compensation shall be paid semi-annually.
- G. Any member who performs duties in addition to his/her normal work day, who has been compensated on an hourly basis as a matter of past practice, shall be compensated in one of the three (3) following manners at the member's option.

9/1/14 - 8/31/15:	\$25.64
9/1/15 - 8/31/16:	\$25.64
9/1/16 - 8/31/17:	\$25.64
9/1/17 - 8/31/18:	\$25.64

- 1. The hourly rate determined by multiplying the then current annual BA base salary by .00077 as referenced above.
- 2. Full time members who are forced to forfeit their regularly scheduled planning period on more than five (5) occasions in a single semester, and to the extent that the planning time is not re-scheduled and received or compensatory time is not accepted by the member in lieu of monetary compensation, shall be compensated (beginning on the sixth (6th) occurrence) on the basis of an hourly pro-ration of their normal Schedule A salary.
- 3. a. A full time member on a semester schedule may accumulate one (1) hour of compensatory time for each extra class period taught. Accumulation of six (6) such periods will entitle the member to a total of one leave day. The member must give a twenty-four hour notice when applying for a compensatory day. This leave day shall be granted but shall not be used for purposes excluded elsewhere in Article XIV, Section A of the contract.
 - b. A full time member on a five (5) period trimester schedule may accumulate one (1) period of compensatory time for each extra class period taught. Accumulation of five (5) such periods will entitle the member to a total of one leave day. The member must give a twenty-four hour notice when applying for a compensatory day. This leave day shall be granted but shall not be used for purposes excluded elsewhere in Article XIV, Section A of the contract.
 - c. A full time member on a six (6) period trimester schedule may accumulate one (1) period of compensatory time for each extra class period taught. Accumulation of six (6) such periods will entitle the member to a total of one leave day. The member must give a twenty-four hour notice when applying for a compensatory day. This leave day shall be granted but shall not be used for purposes excluded elsewhere in Article XIV, Section A of the contract.

A part-time member may accumulate compensatory time on an hour-per-hour basis as approved by administration.

H. 1. Part-time members, including summer school employees, shall be paid the following amounts per hour of instructional time:

9/1/14 - 8/31/15:	\$32.05
9/1/15 - 8/31/16:	\$32.05
9/1/16 - 8/31/17:	\$32.05

9/1/17 - 8/31/18:

\$32.05

Beginning with the 1999-00 school year, the hourly rate shall be determined by multiplying the then current annual BA base salary by .00077 as reference above.

- 2. Members paid in accordance with H.1. of this Article shall receive:
 - a. Preparation time in the amount equal to 15% of each hour of teacher/counselor responsibility.
 - b. Payment for preparation time will be made concurrently with hourly pay.
 - c. If a member has reported to work and/or taught one class period and the class is subsequently canceled by the administration, the member will receive 50% of the preparation pay allowable for the semester.
- I. Members involved in extra duty assignments, involving additional time beyond the maximum required work week, shall be compensated in accordance with the provisions of Schedule B which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement.
- J. The Board shall provide such group insurance coverage as indicated in Schedule C.
- K. Any full-time member contracted to work in his regularly assigned position immediately prior to and/or immediately after the regular school year shall be compensated on a prorated basis in accordance with Section C of this Article for such period(s) of work, and shall be entitled to use accumulated fringe benefits during such period(s) of work, and otherwise have all of the benefits of this Agreement during such period(s). Such assignments will be made on as fair and equitable a basis as possible.

Full time members assigned to a regular, daily work schedule which exceeds the contractually established required time of classroom teachers (reporting time to leave time) and full time members who are required to forfeit on a daily basis a portion of their regular planning time to travel between buildings, shall be compensated for the additional time they are required to work on the basis of a pro-ration of their Schedule A salary. It is understood that this provision applies only to district mandated work assignment.

L. 1. Full-time members having a five (5) or six (6) period instructional schedule will be paid one-sixth (1/6) their regular salary for the additional period. Such shall not include emergency class substitution or voluntary lunchroom supervision in lieu of a preparation period which will be paid in accordance with "G" above.

- M. Effective September 1, 1976, the Board will pay the five percent (5%) contribution to the Michigan Public School Employees' Retirement Fund, on wages earned on or after September 1, 1976, in lieu of members paying such contributions. Any contribution paid to the Michigan Public School Employees' Retirement Fund by members (on wages earned on or after September 1, 1976) between September 1, 1976 and ratification of this Agreement shall be reimbursed to the members by the Board.
- N. If, for any reason, the state does not count some part of a school day or year for retirement purposes, this money will be paid to the member directly instead of to the state.
- O. The Board agrees not to enter into any lawsuit which seeks to deny pension credit to any employee injured on the job for the district.
- R. Association members who retire from the district and subsequently are reemployed as district substitutes, shall be reimbursed the cost of obtaining required criminal history reports after working for the district as a substitute for forty-five (45) days.

ARTICLE IV - Full Time Teaching Loads

A. The normal weekly teaching load in the secondary schools on a semester schedule will be twenty-five (25) teaching periods and five (5) periods to be used for preparation. The normal weekly teaching load in the secondary schools on a trimester schedule with a 5 period day will be twenty (20) teaching periods and five (5) periods to be used for preparation. The normal weekly teaching load in the secondary schools on a trimester schedule with a 6 period day will be twenty-five (25) teaching periods and five (5) periods to be used for preparation. The normal weekly teaching load for members assigned to elementary classrooms shall be twenty-five (25) hours and fifty (50) minutes of instruction and five (5) periods to be used for preparation. In addition to planning time specified in Schedule D, release time for elementary teacher planning shall be provided in accordance with settlement of grievances 9293-03/04 as attached and as part of Schedule D.

In the determination of assignments, all reasonable attempts will be made to balance the workload between members as fairly and equitably as possible. Secondary members who are annually selected by their department members and approved by the building principal to serve as department coordinators will have a normal teaching load of twenty (20) classes and ten (10) periods to be used for preparation. At the secondary level, teacher preparations shall be balanced so as to ensure no teacher will be required to teach more than three (3) preparations in any semester.

B. Members may be required to substitute during their preparation periods in emergency situations. Members may also be required to substitute in an emergency for part of or the entire day when their assignment does not require their presence with the same students daily, provided that all reasonable efforts, including cancellation of member participation in in-district school related functions, to secure a substitute have been exhausted. Emergencies shall be: acute illness, death, accident, sudden family responsibilities, and other circumstances deemed appropriate which occur during the school day. Under no circumstances will absences resulting from a member's involvement in indistrict school related functions be considered emergencies, without the approval of the Association President.

- C. Members, other than those who meet the same students daily and for whom assigned preparation time has been scheduled, shall be provided with an amount of assigned preparation time adequate to perform their duties.
- D. 1. The administration shall request and consider input from the Association and shall then schedule four (4) half days of released time between the ninth (9th) and fifteenth (15th) weeks of the first semester for First through Sixth grade members for the expressed purpose of holding parent-teacher conferences. The kindergarten members shall hold conferences with the parents of those children for whom the member and/or principal deem(s) necessary.
 - 2. The members and building principals shall cooperate in scheduling parents so as to minimize conflicts and maximize parent contact. If, because of difficulties in scheduling, a member is unable to hold a conference with every parent during said released time, the member will schedule conferences with remaining parents before or after school. The administration shall also schedule one-half (1/2) day of released time between the seventh (7th) and ninth (9th) weeks of the second semester for all elementary members for the purpose of holding conferences with the parents of those children for whom the member and/or principal deems conferences necessary. A contact (phone or letter) will be made with those parents who are not scheduled for a conference during the second semester in order to inform those parents of their children's progress.
 - 3. The Board and Association agree the calendar set forth in Schedule E may be adjusted to accommodate the scheduling of parent-teacher conferences. Such adjustments will be made if the majority of the members, the Association, and administration mutually agree to same.
- E. The Board agrees that member activities in the specific areas of P.T.A. attendance, club activity, civic functions, and orientation camp shall be on a voluntary basis; the Association agrees that participation in "open house" activities shall be the responsibility of the member. Further, the Association recognizes the value of co-curricular programs and encourages members to assume the responsibility of active participation therein.
- F. If a member is directed in an emergency situation to assume responsibility for another member's student(s) by an administrator, the member will be compensated as per Article III, Section G of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - Full-Time Member Assignment

The Board and Association recognize that proper member placement is in the best interest of the district and its students.

- A. Notice of tentative assignment shall be given to members as soon as practicable, but not later than Wednesday following the second regular Board of Education meeting in May barring any unforeseen circumstances.
- B. The Board will maintain present staffing assignments wherever possible.
- C. Members shall not be assigned outside the scope of their teaching certificate on a regular basis.
- D. In the determination of assignments, the convenience and wishes of the individual member will be honored to the extent that these considerations do not conflict with the instructional requirements and best interests of the school system and the pupils as determined by the Board. Individual members may request that a statement of reasons for their assignment be given to them. In the event that a member objects to the assignment, the Association may, upon request of such member, send a representative to meet with the member and the Superintendent or his designee to discuss the assignment. The intent of this section is not to change who would be laid off, nor to negate any other assignment and transfer language. The intent of this section is to allow the Board of Education to make decisions regarding placement where a strict adherence to the assignment language would result in an undesirable situation. The burden of proof in this situation would be on the Board.
- E. The Board will reassign members who request new assignments wherever possible, so long as such reassignment does not force another member from their preferred prior-year assignment to which the member would otherwise be entitled. Preferred assignment shall include building, subject or grade level. Reassignments shall be made directly to vacant positions as defined in Article IV of this agreement.

If members requesting a transfer out of a building or subject or grade level are not then transferred, they have first choice on their old position.

In the event that prior to the start of a school year a member's physician provides written notice that the member has a medical condition which would deteriorate or cause harm to the member as a direct result of an assignment, the member will be required to obtain a second opinion from a physician as identified by the district. If the second opinion confirms the original diagnosis, the member will not be assigned to the specific class(es) which has/have been

identified as being harmful. In this event, the member shall be assigned to a position for which the member is certified in accordance with the Master Agreement. In a situation where the second opinion differs from the original diagnosis, a third physician will be mutually selected by the Association and the Board. The opinion of the third physician shall be binding on all parties. The recommendation of the third physician shall be implemented in accordance with assignment provisions of the Master Agreement.

- F. The Board and Association agree that the intent of this section is to provide employment for the members/employees with the greatest seniority in the district wherever possible. It is understood that such employment is contingent upon the member/employee meeting state certification requirements.
- G. When a building or part of a building is closed and the members transferred to another building, they will be treated as though they had been in that assignment the previous year. For example, a counselor at "School A" this year who is transferred to "School B" because of school consolidation will be treated as though they were in "School B" the previous year.
- H. Any other assignments in addition to the normal teaching schedule after the regular school day shall not be obligatory but shall be with the consent of the member unless provided for elsewhere in this agreement.
- I. In the event that the assignment procedures indicated in this Article are not followed, such will be subject to the grievance procedures indicated in Article XIII.
- J. An extra-curricular position(s) which the Board plans to fill during the next school year and for which there is added compensation will be posted for five (5) consecutive work days during the month of May, and an e-mail shall be sent to all GCEA members on the first day of the posting. Interested members shall notify the Associate Superintendent, in writing, of their interest on/before June 1st, provided that:
 - 1. The member(s) currently filling the position has/have indicated that he/she does not wish to continue in the position during the next school year, or
 - 2. The performance of the member(s) currently filling the position(s) is unsatisfactory, or
 - 3. Positions currently filled by persons not teaching in the district are not subject to posting but are considered open. Extra-curricular positions which become vacant during the school year.
 - 4. Extra-curricular positions, which become vacant during the school year or during the summer, will be posted on the district website and an e-mail shall

be sent to all GCEA members on the first day of the posting. These position(s) are to be filled no sooner than the tenth (10th) business day following the district-wide posting; except that the district may make interim appointments which shall not extend beyond the filling of such positions.

- K. The preferences for all assignments will be based on district-wide seniority of the individual involved: except that when a building position is eliminated, the displaced member shall have first rights to vacancies in that building. However, members may be reassigned to assure the continued employment of another teacher with lesser seniority.
- L. In determining members' assignments, the following procedure will be followed in the order indicated:

1. District

- a. Students will be scheduled.
- b. Lay-offs will occur according to ARTICLE XXI if necessary and new positions will be added if necessary.

2. Building

- a. Members will be assigned their current building if requested and available.
- b. When a member(s) transfer(s) is made necessary by a reduction (or projected reduction) in the number of teachers needed to staff a building, the member(s) with the least length of service to the system who is teaching in that building shall be transferred to another assignment. Once this step has been completed, then Level/Subject area shall be considered.

3. Level or subject area

- a. Members will be assigned their current subject or level if requested and available.
- b. When a member(s) transfer(s) is made necessary by a reduction (or projected reduction) in the number of members needed to staff a grade level in a building, the member(s) with the least length of service to the system who is teaching at that specific grade level in that building shall be transferred to another assignment.
- c. When a member(s) transfer(s) is made necessary by a reduction (or projected reduction) in the number of members needed to staff a subject in a building, the member(s) with the least length of service to the system, who is teaching that specific subject(s) in that building shall be transferred to another assignment.

- 4. If the above are not possible, then the members will be put into an unassigned pool. Such unassigned pool shall be a listing of all members by seniority who have:
 - a. been displaced from a teaching position;
 - b. requested a transfer;
 - c. returned from leave per Article XIV.K.2;
 - d. been recalled from layoff, except those people recalled without interruption from one school year to another. When a member(s) transfer(s) is made necessary by a reduction (or projected reduction) in the number of members needed to staff a building, the member(s) with the least length of service in the system who is teaching in that building shall be transferred to another building. These members will be put into the unassigned pool.
- 5. The members in this unassigned reserve pool are then scheduled into the vacant positions according to district seniority and certification. If a change in circumstances causes a change in positions, certifications, or personnel, then this process shall be redone.
- 6. Members requesting a transfer out of a building or subject or grade level are placed in the unassigned reserve pool and their position is kept vacant. They have first choice on their old position if they cannot change to their requested new building or subject or grade level.
- 7. If not available, then the member will be laid off according to Article XXI, provided there are no members with greater seniority whose re-assignment would preclude such layoff. Qualifications for placement will be determined by a valid teaching certificate or license held by the employee.
- M. Member placement shall be made available to all members no later than 15 days after the meeting of the bargaining unit member's first class. Five copies will be sent to each building representative.
- N. No later than June 1, a currently employed member(s) may apply for the option of teaching half-time. This option may be granted upon the determination of its educational feasibility. Prior to approval, the Association, the Administration, and the member will meet to mutually determine and agree upon the equity of prorated time and benefits. Application for half-time teaching positions shall be submitted to the Personnel Office by June 1 preceding the school year in which the half-time position will take place.
- O. 1. Until a member has obtained full and continuing approval pursuant to

position they have secured or holds pursuant to their Agreement; provided, however, that a member may be transferred or reassigned to a position outside of that position if, given their seniority and certification, they would be entitled to do so under the Master Agreement as though (for purposes of this paragraph only) that they at the moment of such transfer or reassignment in fact possessed full and continuing approval to teach that subject or area.

- 2. a. In the event that the Board determines to lay off members, any member who transferred or was reassigned to a position outside the area of emergency/temporary endorsement pursuant to the above paragraph, shall be transferred or reassigned back into a position in that area before any more senior member who possesses full and continuing approval is transferred or reassigned into such position.
 - b. Teachers who voluntarily transfer to a position outside the program for the autistically impaired, before obtaining "full and continuing approval" to teach in the program for the autistically impaired, and subsequently teach a minimum of five (5) consecutive years in another Garden City teaching position(s), shall no longer be involuntarily placed back into a teaching position for the autistically impaired population.
- 3. In the event that a member enters into the Agreement provided for in Appendix D, but then fails or refuses for any reason (except the bona fide unavailability of appropriate course work) successfully to perform or to fulfill such Agreement, the Board shall place the member on a leave of absence, such leave being deemed to be a Voluntary Leave under the Master Agreement; the member shall thereafter remain on such leave until one of the following conditions occurs:
 - a. The member obtains approval to teach in the emergency/temporary endorsement area, and the member is otherwise eligible to return from leave pursuant to the Master Agreement to a position in that area; and/or,
 - b. The member is eligible and requested to return from leave pursuant to the Master Agreement to any vacant position for which the member possesses certification and/or seniority; provided, however, that under no circumstances shall a member who has been placed on a leave return to a position such that a more senior member is involuntarily transferred or reassigned from their position; and/or,
 - c. The leave expires pursuant to the Voluntary Leave provisions of the Master Agreement.

- P. 1. A vacancy shall be defined as a position of not less than 1/2 time (except in the case of a secondary department coordinator) which occurs:
 - (a) Due to retirement;
 - (b) Due to resignation;
 - (c) Due to the creation of a new position;
 - (d) Due to death;
 - (e) Due to an approved leave of absence of at least one semester;
 - (f) Due to properly documented disability leave of at least one semester;
 - (g) Due to the reactivation of an association position;
 - (h) Due to a voluntary transfer.
 - 2. The board recognizes it is desirable in making assignments to vacancies to consider the interests and aspirations of its teachers. All vacancies are subject to filling by the following procedure:
 - (a) Projected vacancies for the next school year based upon layoffs; vacancies created during the current school year after the start of school; vacancies created as a result of known retirements, resignation, leaves, etc. and vacancies created due to projected increases and/or decreases in student enrollment will be posted in buildings for five (5) working days after the second regular Board of Education meeting in April. A copy of each posting will be provided to the association president and a designated building representative at each location. Teachers who wish to voluntarily transfer into these positions or wish to transfer into a position that may be vacated as a result of the transfers shall notify the personnel office in writing no later than the final day of the posting.
 - (b) Notice of tentative assignment shall be given to members as soon as practical, but no later than Wednesday following the second regular Board of Education meeting in May.
 - (c) Vacancies created after notification of tentative assignments will be posted for five (5) working days following the issuance of such notices.
 - (d) Projected vacancies as of the last day of school shall be posted with teacher response required, in writing, to the personnel office no later than July 1, or, in the event July 1 occurs on a week-end, the preceding Friday.
 - (e) Final placement of staff shall be completed by the 4th Friday in August. It is the intent of this agreement to solidify placement for staff for the prospective school year by June 30 or the last school district business

- day prior to June 30. Each staff member shall be given their annual placement in its entirety no later than the first day of the school year.
- (f) Vacancies that occur and that are filled after the date of final staff placement and which the administration determines will continue in the following school year, shall be considered a vacancy for the following year in determining staff placements.
- 3. Member interest in potential staff vacancies shall be indicated on the annual staff placement form during the month of February. Preference sheets may be revised in writing at any time up until June 1.
- 4. For purposes of filling vacancies the Board will accept a letter no later than June 1 from a college or university confirming the member will have completed requirements for certification change prior to the start of the school year. Placement is contingent upon verification that the member has successfully completed the requirements for the certification change.
- 5. For informational purposes the Board agrees to notify the Association of Administrative vacancies.
- Q. No later than June 1, members may advise and provide confirmation from the Michigan Department of Education regarding removal (or pending removal) of teaching endorsement from their certifications. Notification provided after June 1 will not result in reassignment for the upcoming school year. The parties recognize that a member who drops a specific endorsement after June 1 and who does not maintain required certification for their assignment as of the final placement will go to voluntary lay-off status.

ARTICLE VI - Teaching Conditions

The parties recognize that the availability of optimum school facilities for both student and member is desirable to better insure the high quality of education that is the goal of both staff and the Board. It is also acknowledged that the primary duty and responsibility of the member is to teach and that the organization of the school and the school day should be directed at ensuring that the energy of the member is primarily utilized to this end. In addition, supervision of students is recognized as an essential part of total member responsibility.

A. The Board and the Association agree that controlled and reduced class size maxima are desirable goals and also agree that it is a desirable goal to reduce elementary class size below the current contractual requirements. The Board and the Association also recognize the relationship of controlled and reduced class size to the total financial operation and the other financial needs of the district.

The Board agrees to maintain a student-member ratio of 25:1 for the duration of this contract.

The pupils included in this ratio will be all full-time students in the district as of the 4th Friday count except those who are classified as autistic, hearing impaired or part-time.

The staff included in the ratio will be all full-time certified personnel except those in Special Services.

Except as stated below, class size maxima shall be as follows: (Note: Secondary Non-Academic Larger Group Classes refers to such classes as Band, Orchestra, Vocal Music, Study Hall, etc.):

<u>Level/Grade</u>	Maximum Class	s Size
K-1	24	
2	28	
• 3	28	ı
4-6	29	
Secondary Academic	30	
Secondary Gym	38	
Middle School Study Hall	38	

In the event that an overage occurs, elementary teachers will be compensated at the rate of five (5) dollars per day per student up to a maximum of four (4) additional students per class over the agreed to class size maximums.

Special education students folding into regular education classrooms will not be counted as a student in the classroom unless the student is in regular education classroom fifty percent (50%) in regular education classroom time or greater will be counted as one student.

No maximum: Secondary Vocal Music, Instrumental Music, ROTC, and P.E. Sports Techniques.

The administration and the Association leadership shall continue to mutually explore possible ways to reduce the number of students enrolled in secondary health classes.

Such maxima shall be subject to the following:

- 1. Elementary and Secondary classes will be established as of the Fourth Friday, on the basis of the foregoing maxima. The maxima may be exceeded after those dates due to new enrollments; however, whenever they are exceeded after the Fourth Friday by one to three pupils, a full time teacher aide will be provided for the class. If class size maxima are exceeded by more than three pupils after Fourth Friday, a new class shall be created. The district may, if it so chooses, add classes prior to the Fourth Friday.
 - In situations at the elementary level where an additional section is added after the Second Friday, the district shall attempt to secure voluntary student transfers from all existing classes of the same grade within the building. It is understood that the creation of an additional class after the Second Friday may result in an uneven distribution of students.
 - The district shall explore, with appropriate bargaining units, ways to provide support to elementary classes where student enrollment exceeds the established class size maxima between the start of school and 'the established date of class balancing.
- 2. The Board and Association agree that it is desirable to maintain a 5:1 student-member average in the Developmental Learning Program; such averages will be maintained so long as advance written assurance of complete external funding is provided by the external funding source.

- 3. The above maxima may be exceeded when the Board cannot maintain a balanced budget by any other reasonable means. Members shall have access to the grievance procedures (ARTICLE XIII) for the purpose of protesting alleged violations of this Section.
- 4. There shall be one (1) counselor per grade level at the middle school and high school. All secondary counselors, one middle school special education advisor and one special education advisors from the high school will report five (5) days prior to the teacher's reporting date for the purpose of adjusting student schedules. Counselors and special education advisors may elect compensatory time or regular pay (Schedule A) as compensation for the additional time. The scheduling of compensatory time shall be consistent with other provisions of this contract.
- B. The Board recognizes that appropriate texts, library reference facilities, maps and globes, laboratory equipment, audio-visual equipment, art supplies, physical education equipment, current periodicals, standard tests and questionnaires, and similar materials are the tools of the teaching profession. The parties further agree that efforts shall be continued to seek and use textbooks and supplementary reading and other teaching materials which contain the contribution of all racial, ethnic, and religious groups to the history, scientific and social development of the United States. The Board or its designated authority will confer from time to time with the Association for the purpose of improving the selection and use of such educational tools, and the Board will attempt to implement all joint recommendations made by its representatives and the Association.
 - 1. To this end, the Board will make all reasonable attempts to guarantee that working equipment in the District is available to members for appropriate and necessary classroom instructional purposes.
 - 2. The Board will provide:
 - a. Upon request, a lockable space for each full-time member within five (5) months following ratification of this Agreement.
 - b. Suitable facilities for each full-time member to store his/her coat.
 - c. Upon request, teacher editions, if available from the publisher, exclusively for each member's use for all texts used in each of the courses he/she is required to teach.
 - d. A suitable dictionary in each classroom if requested by the full-time member. The part-time program will purchase a supply of dictionaries which may be checked out for the individual member's use.

- e. Appropriate aids, books and adequate quantities of paper, pencils, pens, chalk, erasers and other material required in daily teaching responsibilities.
- f. Approved textbooks delivered to the full-time member's room before the start of the first day of school, unless unforeseen circumstances arise. In the part-time program the books will be delivered to the member for dispersal as soon as available unless a central distribution point is provided at that location.
- g. Upon request by the full-time member, protective clothing in the areas of home economics, industrial arts, art and science lab courses.
- h. The board shall continue to provide twenty(20) computers, district approved software for each computer, connectivity to establish networks where available and possible, and seven printers to be placed in specific locations around the district for exclusive use by teachers for the purpose of maintaining student records, lesson preparation and communication related to instructional issues. The Board shall ensure that this equipment and approved software shall be maintained at a level that will support the above needs. Exact locations where the above identified computer equipment will be located shall be determined by the Board and the Association annually.
- C. Each school shall provide a reference library for full-time members.
- D. The Board agrees to make available in each school typing and duplicating facilities. Clerical personnel will continue to aid members in the preparation of instructional materials as they can be made available by the building or department administrator.
- E. Not later than the start of the 2nd semester, 2004, the district shall develop and implement cleaning standards for each building, and develop and publicize a process for teacher use in communicating cleaning/maintenance issues. In such development, the Association shall be provided the opportunity for consultation and input. Subsequently, at least one meeting per semester between the district and the Association shall be scheduled to review the effectiveness of the cleaning process.
- F. Throughout the school system telephones shall be made available to members for school business and emergency personal use. Members must pay for all toll charges for their personal calls. Each school will maintain one private (unlisted) separate line for extreme emergency, i.e., civil defense or weather warning. Present phone facilities shall be maintained.

- G. In all schools maintained by Garden City Public Schools, a vending machine for beverages shall be installed at the request of the Association provided that no alteration to the building is necessary. All financial and operational arrangements shall be the responsibility of the Association. A separate activity accounting of these funds in each building will be maintained, and the net proceeds will be disbursed as determined by the total building teaching staff upon the authorization of the Association's building representative and the building principal.
- H. Adequate parking facilities maintained by Garden City Public Schools shall be made available to members and these facilities shall be maintained reasonably free of snow, ice, and debris.
- I. The Board shall make available to members clean and sanitary lunchrooms facilities. All full-time members shall be entitled to a duty-free uninterrupted thirty (30) minute lunch period per Schedule D. Members not regularly assigned to classrooms shall have their duty-free lunch period at times approved by their immediate supervisors.
- J. The assignment of a full-time secondary member to lunchroom supervision in lieu of a class shall be voluntary.
- K. Unsafe or hazardous conditions which endanger the health, safety and well-being of a member will be brought to the attention of the immediate administrator for appropriate action. A member may aid the administration by voluntarily participating in the taking of steps to alleviate hazardous or potentially hazardous conditions.
- L. Members shall not be required to correct any standardized tests administered on a system-wide basis, whether those tests are designed to measure intelligence or achievement or for preparation for the readiness program.
- M. The Board will endeavor to keep classroom disruption to a minimum.
- N. The Program for Students with Autism shall be considered a separate program. Members who teach in this program shall receive plan time equal to that provided to elementary teachers in the District. Members who teach adaptive physical education in the Program for Students with Autism shall not be required to meet with more than thirty-three (33) sections of students per week.
- O. While the parties acknowledge the policy of Least Restrictive Environment is legally mandated, they also recognize the extent to which any individual handicapped student should participate in regular education programs and services must be appropriate to that student's unique needs determined by an individual educational planning committee (IEPC) on an individual basis.

- 1. If any member, in writing, advises the Administration of a reasonable basis to believe that a handicapped student assigned to the member has a current individual educational planning committee (IEPC) report that is not meeting the student's unique needs as required by law, the Administration shall forthwith call an IEPC. The member so advising the Administration shall be invited to, and attend, the IEPC.
- 2. To the full extent permitted by law, an Association representative shall be present at an IEPC meeting when any member of the bargaining unit involved in the meeting so requests.
- 3. Recognizing periodic changes in student status and enrollment subsequent to the start of the school year, to the extent possible and while continuing to honor course requests of all students, special education students shall be entered into the computer first and scheduled first so as to result in special education students being assigned in equitable numbers across general education grade levels within each elementary location and across sections of identical subject general education classes at the middle school and senior high school (i.e., If 9 students assigned to Wood Shop having 3 sections, 3 students would be assigned to each section). In the event that a general education member and a special education member enter into a co-teaching situation (or is offered a position based on seniority), a 2 to 1 ratio of general education to special education students shall apply. The number of special education students shall neither exceed State limits nor number of regular education students. The Association and administration agree to develop language for a co-teaching model, in an effort to create a more efficient approach for special education services.
- 4. The parties agree that in cases of mainstreaming handicapped students, all other factors being equal, preference shall be given to placing them at their home schools.
- 5. The following conditions shall apply to placement of a low incidence handicapped student in a general education class-room:
 - a. Any member who will be providing instructional or other services to a low incidence handicapped student in a regular education classroom setting shall be invited, in writing, to participate in the individual educational planning committee (IEPC) which may initially place (or continue the placement of) the student in a regular education classroom. Unless directed to attend by the Administration, the member may choose not to do so. In instances where it is not possible to identify, in advance of

- IEPC's, general education teachers who ultimately will have low-incidence handicapped students assigned to their classrooms, meetings will be convened with such general education teachers as soon as practicable following the beginning of the school year.
- b. The student's IEPC specifies and provides for immediate availability of all supplementary aides, support personnel and other related services deemed necessary by the teacher to satisfactorily achieve educating the student in the regular education class;
- c. The handicapped student's participation in the regular education class will not significantly disrupt nor have a negative impact on the educational process for either the handicapped student or the other students in the class;
- d. Administration has previously provided in-service training to the teacher regarding the instruction and behavioral management of handicapped students in the regular education classroom setting, including the differing approaches, problems and techniques to be utilized with varying handicapping conditions;
- e. The Administration has previously provided awareness information to the affected members and students regarding placement of handicapped student(s) in the class(es). The activities shall be provided to assure that the school climate is receptive to the placement to minimize undue problems for the members and students.
- 6. Except in life threatening or extenuating circumstances with contact by the Administration with the Association President, no member shall be required to perform medical, hygiene or other non-instructional procedures for students such as (but not limited to) suctioning, catheterization, diapering, or attending to any personal hygiene or medical need(s) of the student(s). When new situations arise, the Administration will advise the Association and teacher and meet to discuss problems and how they will be dealt with.

P. Elementary Relief

- 1. The district will provide copying service for approved curriculum items, to be done during the summer and distributed to buildings during first semester. Items to be copied will be identified and prioritized each year by curriculum development committees with teacher input.
- 2. The district will provide limited copying services to elementary instructional staff on a first come first serve basis during the school year. Such copying

- must be requested with a 5-10 day turnaround time and will only apply to non-copyrighted curriculum materials.
- 3. The elementary relief committee will meet at the request of either party to discuss elementary relief concerns.
- Q. Secretarial services will be provided to middle school counselors at the start of the school year, during periods of student scheduling, and other peak times as requested by the counselors and when confirmed by the building principal.
- R. No member shall be required to administer medication (determine appropriate medications, sort medications, and/or determine appropriate doses of medication) to students. In implementing this section, teachers may be required to distribute envelopes which contain pre-sorted, pre-packaged medications to students. In emergencies or extenuating circumstances, members may be required to administer medication in the presence of another adult and pursuant to written permission of the pupil's parent or guardian and in compliance with the written instructions of a physician. Members who administer medication shall be considered to be doing so as a part of their job and, as such, shall be protected by the District's liability policy.
- S. The parties recognize the long standing practice of using student assistants at various school locations throughout the District. Students assistants may be used in the school library, the school office, as teacher aides and/or assistants. The use of student assistants at the high school only, shall be capped at a maximum of 164 student assistants in any one school year.
- T. It is understood that teachers cannot be effective in enforcing classroom control and attendance unless they receive support from building administrators. Accordingly, the Board shall adopt a Student Code of Conduct on an annual basis that stipulates expectations for student behavior and consequences when students fail to comply with the identified expectations. Teachers and administrators shall enforce the Student Code of Conduct. The Association President may, on behalf of individual Association members, bring to the attention of the Superintendent, situations in which it is believed that the established Student Code of Conduct has not been properly enforced.

In situations where students are involved in violence at school and/or involved in threats of any kind against Members, the student shall be removed from the school setting until such time a complete investigation of the situation may be conducted by building administrators.

ARTICLE VI, Continued

- U. The district shall provide the Hepatitis B shot series to any medically eligible member at no cost to them. Members should contact the district personnel department so that the district may make arrangements.
- V. The District will provide for each building one high volume copier machine with collating capabilities and with sufficient support for maintenance to minimize down-time. In addition, the district will provide each building with a back-up duplicating machine capable of high volume.

ARTICLE VII - Full-Time Teaching Periods

- A. Members who are not classroom teachers shall not have a regular work day longer than that of classroom teachers. The regular work day for members is set forth in Schedule D.
- B. Additional secondary classes may be scheduled immediately before or after the normal school day begins or ends. Members shall be assigned these classes on a voluntary basis only. Members affected by such assignments shall report one (1) period earlier (for classes scheduled before the normal school day) than specified in Schedule D or one (1) period later (for classes scheduled after the normal school day) than specified in Schedule D. Further, affected members shall end their day one (1) period earlier (for classes scheduled before the normal day) than specified in Schedule D or report one (1) period later (for classes scheduled after the normal day) than specified in Schedule D.
- C. Members shall be obligated to remain on duty as long as needed in the event of emergency situations such as severe weather warnings, civil disturbances, or other situations which threaten the health or safety of students.
- D. The work hours for members assigned to classroom buildings shall be as set forth in Schedule D except that schedules may be altered by the Board in order to accommodate special situations; however, in general, all time limits will be adhered to. Work hours for members not assigned to classroom buildings shall not be longer than for members assigned to classroom buildings.
- E. Members shall be required to attend meetings called before or after school hours provided that a majority of those affected are in agreement as to the time and place of such meetings. Meetings called during school hours shall be on a regularly scheduled basis and so structured as to cause minimal disruption to the members and students. Nothing in this Section shall prevent the calling of emergency meetings as specifically provided for elsewhere in this Agreement.
- F. On Fridays and days preceding holidays and vacations, members may leave ten (10) minutes earlier than the members' regular dismissal time.
- G. It shall be the practice of the parties to conduct negotiation sessions at times that do not conflict with the normal instructional day of the district to the degree possible. However, if by mutual agreement of the parties, a member shall be engaged during the school day in negotiating on behalf of the Association with any representative of the Board, that member shall be released from regular duties without loss of pay.

ARTICLE VIII - Teacher Discipline

- A. Whenever a member is to be disciplined for any violation of this Agreement and/or Board Policy or practice and/or Administrative Policy or practice, the member shall be entitled to discuss such in the company of their building representative with the administrator issuing the discipline. Such discussion may be immediate or take place at a specified time outside the class day, but within the school schedule to the extent possible. Should disciplinary action likely occur at a given meeting, the member shall be immediately advised of said possibility.
- B. The administration shall give the member an opportunity to receive discipline in a private setting and shall offer Association representation. The Board acknowledges the right of the Association member to be represented by Association representatives of their choice. The district will work cooperatively with the employee in scheduling meetings when the selected representative is available. If the member elects not to have an Association representative present, the member will so state in writing to the administrator. Other administrators may be present when a member is being disciplined, in a number not to exceed the number of Association representatives present.
- C. Discipline shall be initiated as soon as possible, but within five (5) days of administrative knowledge of the incident (or latest incident, if a series of incidents is involved) giving rise to the discipline, if the member is available to receive such discipline. When administering discipline the administrator shall offer specific remedies in writing to the member.
- D. Information forming the basis for discipline shall be made available to the member being disciplined who in turn may make such available to the Association
- E. Any formal discipline or charge, written or verbal, leveled at a member for a violation of this Agreement and/or Board Policy or practice and/or Administrative Policy or practice shall be subject to the Grievance Procedures set forth in ARTICLE XIII.
- F. The member will be notified when any material of a disciplinary nature or directives are placed in their file.
 - A member has the right to attach a rebuttal to any written discipline placed in the file.
- G. There shall be no discipline without just cause.

ARTICLE VIII, Continued

H. Members who have been dismissed and who wish to challenge the dismissal may utilize the grievance procedure (either the regular or expedited process) as stipulated in Article XIII or may utilize the tenure procedure.

ARTICLE IX - Garden City Retirement and Death Benefits

A. Eligibility for Retirement Benefits

A member retiring from the Garden City School District shall be eligible to receive a lump-sum retirement benefit under one of the following conditions:

1. General Situation

Eligible to receive Michigan Public School Employees' Retirement benefits upon termination of employment with Garden City Schools.

2. Special Situation

Thirty (30) years of service to the Garden City School System.

3. Health

After ten (10) or more years of service to Garden City Public Schools and upon certification by a Retirement Board selected medical doctor that retirement is mandatory due to reasons of health which appear to be permanent, the member may retire.

Only one retirement benefit can be collected by a member.

B. Retirement Benefits

A lump-sum retirement benefit shall be computed in the following manner:

- 1. Members retiring shall receive \$85.00 for each unused accumulative leave day, up to a maximum total payment of \$8,500.
- 2. Two hundred-fifty dollars (\$250) per year for each year of service to the Garden City School District served beyond the tenth (10th) year of service.
- 3. A member shall receive an amount described in either "1" or "2," whichever is greater.

C. Optional Member Retiree's Health & Life Insurance Benefits

1. Eligibility Members who retire under Section A of this ARTICLE are eligible to carry the following health and life insurance coverage under the district's group plan.

2.	Coverage: Optional Health Insurance	Cost to Retirees
	From date of retirement until	
	age 65 - full group coverage	Group Rate
	From age 65 on, co-insured with Medicare	Group Rate
3.	Coverage: Life Insurance	
	From date of retirement until	
	age 65 - \$5,000	Group Rate
	From age 65 on - \$2,500	Group Rate

4. Payments

All payments will be made directly to the insurance carrier's office. A payment overdue for thirty (30) days will automatically cancel out all benefits. Payments for the following month will be due in the insurance carrier's office no later than the 10th of each month. The first payment will be due no later than thirty (30) days after termination of employment in case of a retirement during the school year, and no later than ninety (90) days after the last day of school fiscal year in the case of a retirement which takes effect on the last day of the school year.

- D. 1. For those members who are eligible to retire under the Michigan Public School Employees' Retirement System and who do retire before age 65, and have a minimum of twenty (20) years of service with Garden City Public Schools, the Board shall provide reimbursement to the retiree up to fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) per year (reimbursement to be paid semi-annually, in January and June) toward the payment of the Michigan Public School Employees' Retirement System hospitalization. This reimbursement shall cease at age 65.
 - 2. Beginning September 1, 2013, the reimbursement shall be reduced to up to seven hundred and fifty dollars (\$750). Further, as of September 1, 2013, the benefit shall be eliminated for all employees hired after September 1, 2002.

E. Death Benefits

A death benefit calculated on the retirement formula at the time of death shall be paid the designated beneficiary of any Garden City full-time Association member. A member must be under contract at the date of death for the beneficiary to realize this benefit.

ARTICLE X - Teacher Evaluation

- A. The primary objective of the formal and informal evaluation is to improve the quality of instruction. The secondary objective of formal and informal evaluation is to permit decisions relative to retention or severance of employment in accordance with the tenure laws. Evaluation visits should be followed by mutually supporting efforts on the part of both the evaluator and the member to consummate evaluation objectives.
- B. 1. Probationary members will receive a minimum of two (2) written and signed evaluations per probationary year.
 - 2. Bargaining unit members shall be evaluated once every three (3) years, with the following exceptions only: The member agrees to more frequent evaluations, the member is on a plan of assistance or the member is currently a probationary member. Members in the first year of a new elementary assignment (unless that member shall already have been on a plan of assistance for non-instructional related problems) shall not be evaluated during that first year even if they would have otherwise been due for an evaluation on the three year cycle. Members in this situation shall be evaluated the next succeeding school year.

Members in secondary assignments with one or more new classes (unless that member shall already have been on a plan of assistance for non-instructional related problems) shall be evaluated only in those courses which they have taught within the preceding three (3) years). Members who are in new assignments as described above, may be evaluated in the new classes after one year regardless of the three year schedule.

- 3. A member may request and the administrator may determine to increase the number of evaluations for either probationary members or tenure members.
- C. All observations of member performance shall be conducted openly.
- D. All probationary members, except speech therapist/pathologists, school social workers, school psychologists, behavior specialists, homebound members, teachers of the emotionally impaired, and teacher consultants/emotionally impaired, before being placed on tenure or dismissed must have been observed a minimum of four (4) class periods. All probationary first year members will be given at least a twenty-four (24) hour advance notice of the first formal observation. A formal conference will follow. Written evaluations will not be dated or distributed prior to December 1.

- E. All tenure members, except district wide special services personnel mentioned in D above, shall receive a written evaluation based on formal observations on separate days in their areas of certification. District wide special services personnel will be evaluated by conference with the Executive Director of Special Services.
- F. 1. Other than those members assigned to the Program for Students with Autism all speech therapist/pathologists, school social workers, school psychologists, behavior specialists, homebound members, teachers of the emotionally impaired, and teacher consultants/emotionally impaired will be evaluated by conference with the Executive Director of Special Services.
 - 2. Should administrators other than the Executive Director of Special Services assist in the evaluation of the aforementioned members, they will complete a signed, written evaluation and hold a conference with these members prior to submitting the evaluation to the Executive Director of Special Services.
- G. All evaluations will be distributed at least two (2) weeks before the end of the school year.
- H. All written evaluations must be signed by the evaluator. The member must sign and return the evaluation within five (5) days indicating that he has read it. The member may attach a written, signed statement to the evaluation.
- I. Any member shall have the right upon request to review the local evaluation contents of his own personnel file. At the request of a member, the Association representative may accompany him at such a review.
- J. Evaluations shall be conducted by the member's immediate supervisor or an administrator working in the same building or otherwise familiar with the member's work, who shall be designated by the Board.
- K. In the event a probationary member is not continued in employment, the Board will advise the member of the reasons in writing and provide for a hearing upon request of the member. There shall be no arbitration for probationary members dismissed prior to the end of the second probationary year. Probationary members dismissed any time after the second probationary year, shall be dismissed for just cause only. Probationary members, dismissed after the second probationary year who wish to challenge the dismissal, may utilize the Grievance Procedure as stipulated in Article XIII of this agreement.
- L. In the interest of securing optimal member performance, the evaluator, upon request by the member, will discuss his perceptions of the observation within ten (10) days of said request.

- M. The Board has the responsibility to provide the highest quality education program practicable for every child in the school district. To assist the Board in achieving this end the member has the responsibility to make careful daily preparation and shall submit lesson plans not more frequently than weekly as required by the immediate supervisor.
- N. The Board and the association recognize that there are many teaching methods, styles of presentation and techniques. Members are encouraged to use a variety of methods, styles of presentation and/or techniques to best meet the needs of the learner.
- O. If as a result of an evaluation, a member and/or administrator believes that a plan of assistance is necessary, the member may request the support of an association member in developing such plan. The written plan of assistance will be made available to the parties involved in the development of the plan.
- P. It is not the intent of the parties to restrict the Board's ability to develop a plan of assistance for a member at any time, nor shall the Board be prevented from issuing an advisory evaluation to assist a member in a new assignment. Such advisory evaluations shall be shared only with the member and shall not become a part of the member's personnel file.
- Q. Should any law require more frequent evaluations, the effects of changes required by the law shall be bargained between the parties prior to implementation.
- R. The evaluation instrument, process and required timelines shall be attached to this agreement.

ARTICLE XI - Protection of Members

- A. The Board recognizes the member's authority and effectiveness in his classroom is enhanced by administrative backing and support:
 - 1. When an atypical pupil requires the attention of special counselors, social workers, law enforcement personnel, physicians or other professional persons, and the member appropriately refers the matter in writing to the administration, the administration will promptly take a direct interest in the case, take steps to refer the pupil involved to Special Services, and affect a follow-up procedure.
 - 2. In instances of assault on a member and/or student substance abuse, the written requirement shall be waived until such time as a follow-up report can be written.
- B. Any case of assault upon a member shall be promptly reported to the administration. The Board will provide legal counsel to advise the member of his rights and legal processes with respect to such assault. Acts of physical aggression by a student directed toward a member, student or any other person shall be promptly reported to the Administration. The Administration will take immediate steps to remedy the situation, initiate prompt remedial action, and affect a follow-up procedure.
- C. If a member is injured while in the line of duty, medical and/or surgical, and/or hospital care will be furnished by the Board per the Board's workers' compensation insurance policy.
- D. Any complaints or charges directed toward a member shall be promptly called to the member's attention. A member shall be deemed innocent of any and all charges until proven otherwise.
- E. Board Policy, 5.10, "Vandalism", shall cover personal property of members on school property as a direct or indirect result of their employment.
- F. It shall be the policy of the Garden City School District to reimburse an employee for personal clothing and personal effects (watches, jewelry, glasses) worn on one's person (to a maximum of 1% of B.A. Base per item) if these items are damaged or broken because of a violent act by a member of the student body. The reimbursement request shall be presented to the business manager and must be accompanied with a recommendation by the building administrator or program administrator with an invoice showing replacement or purchase of the item. This policy will not cover automobile damage, personal equipment damage, or items that are stolen or allegedly stolen while on the

- school premises. Damaged or broken items shall become the property of the school district if the reimbursement value is equal to the replacement value of the item.
- G. The Board and the Association recognize that alcoholism and substance abuse are illnesses and shall be treated as such pursuant to the application of the terms and conditions of this agreement.
 - 1. A member who comes to work under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, or who is found using alcoholic beverages or non-prescribed controlled substances while on the job, or whose performance on the job is impaired as the result of the abuse of alcohol, illegal drugs or non-prescribed substances has a very serious problem. As a result, the Board may insist, upon the first incident and where reasonable, that the member agree to participate in an out-patient treatment program if recommended by medical or other qualified personnel. Once the employee is enrolled, they may return to work. Following a second incident, the member must complete an in-patient treatment program (if approved by the district health carrier) before they will be allowed to return to work.
 - 2. The primary concern of the parties is limited to abuse problems which cause poor attendance, unsatisfactory performance on the job or involve criminal actions at the work place.
 - 3. The Board agrees that any member with a substance abuse problem who voluntarily requests diagnosis or treatment shall not jeopardize their job rights or job security by doing so. Such problems shall be handled in a confidential manner.
 - 4. An individual member and the President of the Association shall be promptly notified of all reports of actual or alleged substance abuse.
 - 5. When an administrator observes that a member is experiencing difficulties in maintaining their performance and whose difficulties, in the opinion of the administrator, are due in whole or in part to substance abuse, the administrator shall immediately notify the member and the President of the Association of the concern and schedule a special meeting to discuss the apparent difficulties with the member and the Association President or their designee.
 - 6. The implementation or interpretation of any provision of the substance abuse language shall be subject to the grievance procedure of this agreement.
- H. The Board recognizes the member's right to have the consideration of their dismissal, suspension, discipline or the consideration of periodic personnel

evaluations conducted by the Board of Education in a closed hearing pursuant to the provisions of the open meetings act, at the request of the named member. The Board agrees that any vote to proceed on allegations, complaints or charges brought against any member shall be conducted in closed session and that the member shall not be identified in any public meeting of the Board of Education. The Board further agrees that all employment records regarding dismissal, suspension, discipline, complaints, allegations, charges, medical, counseling or psychological records, or personnel evaluations shall not be released to third parties absent the written consent of the members or as required by law. The Board further agrees that in the event a request is made by a third party for such records, the Board shall promptly notify the member and the Association and agrees that at the request of the member or the Association that it shall deny the request and assert on behalf of the member all applicable freedom of information act exemptions.

The provisions of this Article shall not prevent the Association from having access to any employment records reasonably related to its duties as the exclusive bargaining representative.

ARTICLE XII - Negotiation Procedures

- A. 1. Representatives of the Board and the Association's bargaining committees may meet at the request of either party during the last week of each month at a mutually agreeable time for the purpose of reviewing the administration of the contract and to resolve problems that may arise. These meetings are not intended to by-pass the grievance procedure. Each party will submit to the other, on or before Friday prior to the meeting, an agenda covering the items to be discussed. Should such a meeting result in a mutually acceptable amendment to the Agreement, then the amendment shall be subject to ratification by the Board and the Association.
 - 2. The principal and Association building representative(s) may meet at least once each month at a mutually agreed upon time for the purpose of reviewing the administration of the contract and to resolve problems which may arise. These meetings are not intended to by-pass the grievance procedure.
- B. Not less than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement, the parties will begin negotiations for a new agreement covering wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment of members employed by the Board.
- C. In any negotiations described in this Article, neither party shall have any control over the selection of the negotiating or bargaining representatives of the other party, and each party may select six (6) representatives and two (2) alternates from within or outside the school district. It is recognized that no final agreement between the parties may be executed without ratification by both parties, but the parties mutually pledge that representatives selected by each shall be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, and make concessions in the course of negotiations or bargaining, subject only to such ultimate ratification.
- D. If the parties fail to reach an agreement in any such negotiations, either party may invoke the mediation machinery of the Michigan Employment Relations Commission.
- E. All negotiation meetings will be held in a room(s) mutually agreed upon by the chief negotiators for the Board and Association.
- F. All negotiation meetings will be closed to all persons who are not duly appointed representatives or alternates under this Article. Each team, with as much

ARTICLE XII, Continued

- notice as possible, may bring in consultants for the purpose of aiding in the negotiation of specific proposals.
- G. All negotiation meetings will be set as to time, duration, and agenda by mutual agreement of the two chief negotiators.
- H. All agreements shall be tentative pending final agreement on an entire tentative contract by the negotiating representatives for both sides.
- I. Each team shall have on the table at all times a set of proposals, which, if agreed to by the other team along with all tentative contract agreements in effect, shall constitute an entire tentative contract.
- J. Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, the negotiation procedures outlined in this Article shall be in effect until a successor agreement is negotiated and ratified.

ARTICLE XIII - Grievance Procedures

A. Definitions

- 1. A "grievance" is an alleged violation of the terms of this Agreement.
- 2. The "aggrieved member" is the member or members making the claim.
- 3. The term "member" includes any individual or group who is a member of the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement.
- 4. A "party of interest" is a member employed by the Board, or the Board, who might be required to take action, or against whom action might be taken in order to resolve a problem.
- 5. During the regular school year, the term "days" shall mean school attendance days. Beyond the regular school year, the term "days" shall mean normal business days.

B. Purpose

The primary purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest level possible, equitable solutions to the problems of the Parties. Both Parties agree that these proceedings shall be kept as confidential as may be appropriate at each level of these procedures. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any member with a grievance to discuss the matter informally with any appropriate member of the administration or proceeding independently as described in Section E of these procedures.

C. Structure

- 1. The Association shall have an established Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee, whose membership shall be known to all "parties of interest."
- 2. The building principal shall be the administrative representative when the particular grievance arises from that building. The member's(s') immediate supervisor shall be the administrative representative when the grievance does not involve members regularly assigned to a building.
- 3. The Board hereby designates the Superintendent or his designee as its representative when the grievance arises in more than one school building.

D. Procedure

The number of days indicated at each level shall be considered as maximum, and every effort shall be made to expedite the process. The time limits may be extended by mutually written consent. If the grievance is filed on or after June 1, the time limits shall be reduced in order to affect a solution prior to the end of the school year, except in those cases which cannot be resolved within this

time limit. The grievance shall be signed by the aggrieved and shall specify the facts giving rise to the grievance, the ARTICLE and section of this Agreement allegedly violated, rationale as to why the facts constitute a violation and remedy sought.

The MEA Uniserve director may write and file grievances. Said grievances may be filed by fax without the signatures of individual grievants or local representatives so long as the appropriate administrator is notified in advance by telephone that such a grievance is being faxed. It is understood that the appropriate individual and local representative signatures shall be added to the form at Level Two A. of the grievance procedure.

1. Level One

- a. The GCEA or a member with a concern which they identify as a grievance shall discuss it with their immediate supervisor or principal, individually or together with their Association representative, or with representatives of either party of interest present, within twenty (20) days of the occurrence.
- b. As soon as possible, but within sixteen (16) days from notification of the grievance, the immediate supervisor or principal will render a verbal decision to all parties of interest.
- c. In the event the aggrieved person or the Association is not satisfied with the supervisor's or principal's verbal decision, they may file the grievance, in writing, within ten (10) days of the supervisor's or principal's decision on the grievance, with the Association's Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee with a copy to the immediate supervisor or principal. The grievance shall specify the facts giving rise to the grievance, the ARTICLE and Section of this Agreement allegedly violated, rationale as to why the facts constitute a violation, and remedy sought.
- d. Within six (6) days from receipt of the written grievance, the principal or immediate supervisor shall submit their written decision with rationale with copies to all parties as noted above.

2. Level Two

a. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the supervisor's or principal's written decision, the Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee shall meet to consider the grievance. If the Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee chooses, it may, within the same ten (10) day

period, process the written grievance to the Superintendent of Schools, or their designee, with copies to all parties of interest.

b. As soon as possible, but within ten (10) days from receipt of the written grievance, the Superintendent or their designee will render a written decision with rationale to all parties of interest.

3. Level Three

In the event the grievance is not resolved to the satisfaction of the Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee at Level Two-b, the grievance may be submitted to arbitration before an impartial arbitrator. Only the Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee may approve of, and process, grievances to arbitration. If the parties cannot agree as to the arbitrator, he shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules. Such rules shall likewise also govern the arbitration proceedings. The Association and the Board shall not be permitted to assert in such arbitration proceedings any ground or to rely upon any evidence not previously disclosed to the other party. The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from terms of this Agreement.

Both parties agree to be bound by the award of the arbitrator and agree that judgment thereon may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. No decision in any one case shall require a retroactive wage adjustment in any other case or any other adjustment in any other case.

The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the parties. A request to utilize the arbitration machinery shall be submitted to the Board and the American Arbitration Association within twenty (20) days of the Level Two-b decision.

E. Rights to Representation

- 1. Any party of interest may be represented at all meetings and hearings at any level of the grievance procedure by another member or legal counsel; providing, however, that any member may in no event be represented by an officer, agent or outside representative of any organization other than the Association.
- 2. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent any individual member from presenting a formal grievance by himself and having the formal grievance adjusted without intervention of the Association within the time limits established if the adjustment is consistent with the terms of this Agreement. In such case, the Board will notify the Association and will

provide the opportunity for duly authorized representatives to be present at such adjustment.

F. Miscellaneous

- 1. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without prejudice.
- 2. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by or against a member participant in the grievance procedure for reason of such participation.
- 3. All documents, communications, and records dealing with a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participant.
- 4. Forms for filing and processing grievances, designed by the Superintendent or their designee and the Professional Rights and Responsibilities Committee, shall be prepared by the Superintendent or their designee, and shall be given appropriate distribution so as to facilitate the operation of the grievance procedure.
- 5. Access shall be made available to all parties, places, and records for all information necessary to the determination and processing of the grievance, within the limits specified in ARTICLE II, Section H.
- 6. The failure of an aggrieved member to proceed from one level of the grievance procedure to the next level within the time limits set forth, shall be deemed to be an acceptance of the decision previously rendered and shall constitute a waiver of any future appeal concerning the particular grievance. The failure of the representative(s) of the Board or the Board to respond to a grievance at any level within the specified time limit shall be deemed to be a denial of the grievance at that level.
- 7. When a grievance arises in more than one building, and is directed to the Superintendent or his designee, the regular grievance procedure will be followed, with the Level One procedure directed to the Superintendent's designee and the Level Two procedures directed to the Superintendent.
- 8. It shall be the general practice of all parties of interest to process grievance procedures during times which do not interfere with assigned duties; provided, however, in the event it is agreed by the Board to hold proceedings during regular working hours, a member participating in any level of the grievance procedure, with any representative of the Board, shall be released from assigned duties without loss of salary.
- 9. Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any claim or grievance arising thereunder may be processed through the grievance procedure until resolution.

- 10. Member rights granted outside of this contract may be enforced by appropriate means other than this grievance procedure.
- G. A grievance may be processed via the expedited grievance procedure for disputes involving dismissals, lay-off/recall, and assignments as follows:
 - 1. A member with a concern, which they identify as a grievance, shall discuss the concern with their administrator individually or together with their Association Representative, or with representatives of either party of interest present within ten (10) days of the occurrence. The administrator shall, within four (4) days, provide a verbal response to the member.
 - 2. Within ten (10) days, the member will submit the written grievance to the Association and within the same ten (10) day period, the Association may process the grievance to the Superintendent. The Superintendent, or their designee, shall schedule a meeting with the Association to be held within six (6) days in an effort to resolve the issue. The Superintendent shall, within four (4) days of such meeting, render a written decision, with rationale, to all parties of interest.
 - 3. If the dispute is still not resolved to the Association's satisfaction, within ten (10) days of the decision of the Superintendent or their designee, the Association may appeal the grievance to the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules of expedited arbitration. Not withstanding American Arbitration rules to the contrary, the parties agree that post-hearing briefs may be submitted within five (5) working days of the conclusion of a hearing.
 - 4. The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from the terms of this Agreement. Both parties agree to be bound by the award of the arbitrator and agree that judgment thereon may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE XIV - Leaves

A. Leave Days

1. Full-time members shall receive a bank of twelve (12) leave days each school year to be earned at the rate of one and two-tenths (1-2/10) days per month of employment. All such leave days may be used prior to being earned; however, any unearned leave days that have been so used will be deducted from the final pay in case of termination of employment. No member may use unearned leave days in excess of those that can be earned during the balance of the school year. A member must be in pay status for three-fourths (3/4) of the working days of the calendar month to earn days for that calendar month.

Part-time leave shall be accumulated three (3) hours per every sixty (60) instructional hours assigned. All such leave time may be used prior to being earned; however, any unearned leave time that has been so used will be deducted from the final pay in case of termination of employment. No member may use unearned leave time in excess of those that can be earned during the balance of the school year.

Leave days may be used only for personal illness, emergencies in the immediate family and personal business provided that a member who takes an extended leave for more than eight (8) consecutive working days for reasons other than personal illness shall provide a letter to the superintendent indicating the reason for being absent and his/her anticipated date of return. Active misuse of this section will be dealt with by the Association and the Board through the special conference provision of Article XII, as a first step.

- 2. Leave days shall be cumulative without limit. During the month of September, each member on staff shall be given a written statement of his leave day balance as of the end of the previous school year.
- 3. The family shall be defined as spouse, children, foster children, step-children, parents, grandparents, brothers, sisters, in-laws (mother, father, grandparents, brothers, and sisters), and dependents living within the household.
- 4. Members returning to work from a leave of any description shall retain previous accumulated leave not used by the leave.
- 5. Members shall experience no loss of leave days for line-of-duty accidents. Workers' Compensation benefits will be paid directly to the employee; the

employee will notify the Board of the amount of each Workers' Compensation check, the Board will then pay the difference between the Workers' Compensation check and the amount of the employee's regular pay for thirty (30) weeks.

- 6. Leave days shall not be used for recreation and/or vacation purposes and shall not be used to extend a holiday or vacation period.
- 7. All members who are absent from duty for any reason are charged with the responsibility to notify the Board of Education. Full-time members shall call the Board of Education as soon as possible to state their name and assignment, and to report the reason for absence. Such member will also notify the secretary, the building or department to which he/she is assigned. The Personnel Office of the Board of Education will arrange for a substitute where appropriate. The Board will provide an electronic answering service which will enable a member to call in absence information between the hours of 2:30 p.m. and 5:30 a.m. in lieu of the calls indicated above.

Part-time members are encouraged to call the Board of Education at least 90 minutes before their scheduled starting time for that day.

The Board will provide forms to teachers for absentee follow-up records.

- 8. Each member shall receive one (1) additional leave day beyond the number of leave days identified in Section A of this Article effective with the start of the 1999-00 school year. For each additional day of instruction added to the annual school calendar after the 1999-00 school, each member shall receive two (2) hours of additional leave time.
- 9. Members may use a maximum of three (3) days from each year's total leave allocation as personal leave. However, members who wish to use a day of personal leave must request approval for the day from the District Personnel Office not less than forty-eight (48) hours in advance. The District shall limit the number of approved Personal Leave days to a maximum of seven (7) Member days on any one instructional day. Approval for use of Personal Leave days shall be provided on a first request, first approved basis. The parties mutually recognize and re-affirm the appropriate use of other leave days as stipulated in Section A, (6) of this Article.
- B. Child Care Leaves are subject to the provisions of section J of this Article.
- C. Military Leaves
 - 1. Military leaves of absence without pay or fringe benefits shall be granted to any member who shall be drafted (or who enlists when being drafted is imminent) for military duty or called to active duty to any branch of the

armed forces of the United States. Voluntary enlistment will be evaluated on the individual merit of the case.

- 2. Members on military leave which did not result from voluntary enlistment shall be given the benefit of any increments which would have been credited to them had they remained in active service to the school system.
- 3. Members on military leave which did not result in voluntary enlistment shall have credited to them leave days/hours, for each year in the service; in the amount equal to the yearly average number of unused leave days/hours accumulated while employed in the system for at least one (1) year.

D. Public Office Leave

The Board shall grant a leave of absence of one school semester, or a combination of continuous school semesters, not to exceed one school year, without pay or fringe benefits to any member to campaign for himself or serve in an elective public office. The request for such leave shall be submitted at least sixty (60) days prior to the start of the school year or the second semester, whichever is to be first affected by such request. The Board will, upon request, grant one (1), one year renewal of this leave.

E. Peace Corps Leave

Leave of absence will be granted up to two (2) school years, without pay or fringe benefits to any member who joins the Peace Corps (or other such organization as formed by the United States Government) as a full-time member in such program. Any period so served shall be treated as time taught for the purposes of the increments on the salary schedule set forth in this Agreement. The Board may, upon written request, grant renewal of this leave.

F. Association Leaves

- 1. The Board shall grant, upon the request of the President of the Association leave without loss of pay or leave days for members to attend meetings of the Association or organizations with which it may be affiliated. Forty (40) days per school year shall be granted by the Board. All days used in excess of 40 days shall be promptly reimbursed by the Association at the current district substitute rate.
- 2. During the 2011-2012 school year, the President of the Garden City Education Association shall be provided with four hours release time per day from school duties without loss of pay for the purpose of being available to the administration for consultation on matters of mutual concern. During the 2012-2013 school year, the Association shall pay 50% of the salary for the President's release time. During the 2013-2014 school year, the

- Association shall pay 100% of the salary and benefits for the President's release time.
- 3. During the 2011-2012 school year, the PR&R Chairperson shall be released from school duties for one (1) hour each day without loss of pay for the purpose of being available to the administration for consultation on matters of mutual concern. The PR&R Chairperson release time shall be eliminated effective September 1, 2012.
- G. State and National Officer Leaves

Any member who is elected MEA or NEA president shall be granted a leave of absence without pay or fringe benefits to serve one (1) term of office.

H. Legal Processes

- 1. A member shall be released for jury duty or processes directly related to jury duty without loss of pay or accumulated leave time. The member will continue on regular payroll.
- 2. A member will not experience loss of pay for absenteeism on days involving litigation initiated by or in behalf of the Board. Litigation not initiated by the Board and resulting in absenteeism of a member would result in a loss of pay for that member after available leave days were used except as provided in "3" below.
- 3. A member shall be granted up to three (3) non-cumulative leave days during a school year to make officially required appearances before governmental agencies, provided that the board may intervene to attempt to schedule such appearances so as not to interfere with or disrupt the member's instructional schedule, and provided that the Board may grant such additional leave days under extenuating circumstances.

I. Sabbatical Leave

- 1. To qualify for consideration for a Sabbatical Leave, the full-time member must have taught in the Garden City School System at least seven (7) consecutive years by the time the leave is to be in effect. A member on a leave of absence, having served the system seven (7) or more consecutive years, must have returned to work and must have worked at least a semester after having returned to work before being eligible to apply for a Sabbatical Leave.
- 2. A Sabbatical Leave may be granted for one or more of the following activities if such is directly related to the professional improvement of the member as evaluated by the Board.
 - a. Formal study at an accredited college or university.

- b. Research work under the guidance of competent research personnel
- c. Travel, either domestic or foreign
- d. Advanced study for a specialty program
- e. Alternative careers related to the member's area of certification
- 3. No more than ten (10) semesters of Sabbatical Leave may be granted during any one year.
- 4. Sabbatical Leaves for members employed by the Garden City Board of Education shall be granted in the following manner:
 - a. The study, research, or travel plans for the year or semester, together with the application, must be submitted to the Associate Superintendent for review. Criteria for the selection of the member(s) to be recommended to the Board of Education shall incorporate the following:
 - 1.) Date of filing the letter of application
 - 2.) Purpose of the leave
 - 3.) Seniority of professional service in the school system
 - 4.) Professional growth of the staff member
 - 5.) Objectivity potential benefit to the school system
 - b. The deadlines for filing applications are:
 - 1.) The last school day in November for leaves to be granted for the second semester of that school year.
 - 2.) Last school day in May for the following fall semester or school year.
 - c. After due consideration of all letters of application, the Superintendent shall present each request to the Board with his written recommendation of acceptance or rejection. A copy of the Superintendent's recommendation to the Board of Education will be furnished the member applicant at least five (5) days prior to the Board meeting at which the granting or denial of the leave will be consummated. The member involved will then be asked to be present at the meeting when it comes up for consideration by the Board.
- 5. While on the Sabbatical Leave, the member will receive one-half (1/2) the salary they would have received for teaching in Garden City during this leave. Such pay will be paid according to regular pay procedure for that year or semester. The member will agree to the rewriting of their teaching contract to reflect the Sabbatical contractual salary or sign a contract rider reflecting the monetary change.

- 6. On the part of the recipients, the granting of sabbatical Leave carries an obligation to return to the system and to teach for a period of time at least double the length of the period for which the Sabbatical Leave was granted. As a condition to receiving final approval for a Sabbatical Leave, a member shall file with the Personnel Office a written agreement stipulating that following the leave they will remain in the service of the Garden City Public Schools for a period of
 - a. One year of teaching service in the Garden City Public Schools commencing with the Garden City School semester following the termination of the leave period (in the case of a semester leave).
 - b. Two years of teaching service in the Garden City Public Schools commencing with the Garden City School semester following the termination of the leave period (in the case of a year's leave).
 - c. The obligations indicated in this subsection may be postponed for up to one (1) year as a result of a certified temporary medical disability of the teacher.
 - d. The obligations indicated in this subsection will be canceled as a result of a medical retirement of the member based on total and permanent disability.
- 7. To further protect the Board against loss by reason of failure to return the member shall execute a non-interest bearing promissory note to the Garden City Board of Education as follows:
 - a. One Semester Sabbatical Leave

The member who receives a one semester Sabbatical Leave executes a promissory note in the amount of his one--half pay due for the period of the Sabbatical payable to the Garden City Board of Education and bearing a due date of the first day of the semester following the completion of the Sabbatical Leave period. If they fail to return to teach in Garden City the following semester, the full value of the note comes due on the day members report for duty for that semester. If the member returns and teaches one semester and fails to teach the second successive semester, one-half (1/2) of the note is forgiven but one-half (1/2) is due the first day of the next semester when the school system's members report for duty.

b. Full Year Sabbatical Leave

The member who receives a year's Sabbatical Leave executes a promissory note in the amount of the half pay due them for the period of

the year's Sabbatical Leave payable to the Board of Education and bearing a due date of the first day of the semester following the completion of the year's Sabbatical Leave. If they fail to return to teach in garden City the following semester, the full value of the note comes due on the day members report for duty for that semester. If the member returns and teaches one year but fails to teach a second successive year after the completion of the Sabbatical Leave, then half of the face amount is forgiven but one-half (1/2) is then due the first day of the next semester when the school system's members report for duty.

- c. The due date of the promissory note indicated in this subsection may be postponed for up to one (1) year as a result of certified temporary medical disability of the member.
- d. The promissory note indicated in this subsection will be canceled as a result of a medical retirement of the member based on total and permanent disability.
- 8. During the Sabbatical, all rights in reference to the member's professional status on the faculty shall remain the same as though the member has taught in the classroom in Garden City for the academic year. This includes group insurance coverage while on leave and the member's average yearly accumulation of leave days upon return.
- 9. During the Sabbatical, the member shall not be allowed to hold any full-time paid positions. However, this section shall not be construed to deny any member the right to fellowships, scholarships, grants-in-aid, or other scholastic stipends.
- 10. The provisions of Article XIV, subsection L.1 are not applicable to this section.

J. Voluntary Leave

1. The Board shall grant a voluntary leave of absence, upon request, to a member without pay or fringe benefits, for a purpose(s) not enumerated in this Agreement. Members may take a one (1) trimester, one (1) semester or one (1) year leave under this provision. The Board shall extend such a leave up to three (3) years at the request of the member provided that a certified replacement is available. The Board may extend such leave up to an additional two (2) years at the request of the teacher provided a certified replacement is available. Said leave shall not be granted for the purposes of accepting an administrative position in the Garden City School District. (See Article XXII, A.4.b.) In no case shall a member be eligible for a voluntary

leave for a cumulative leave period of time that exceeds the member's seniority at the time the leave began, rounded upward to the nearest full semester. (Further, the employer agrees that the sentence preceding this one shall not be applied to affect bargaining unit members who are on voluntary leave as of the ratification of the 1988-91 agreement, for the duration of that continuous, uninterrupted voluntary leave of absence.)

- 2. The member who has placed his seniority in escrow may continue all fringe benefits by reimbursing the district at the group rate.
- 3. Any member who has extended their leave time under the provisions of this section shall return to employment status with the district or be terminated.
- 4. These provisions shall apply to any member on employment, leave, or layoff status.
- 5. Application for a leave starting in September shall be submitted, in writing, to the Personnel Department by June 1 of the school year preceding such leave. Application for a leave starting second semester shall be submitted, in writing, to the Personnel Department by December 15 of the current school year. Application for a leave starting the second trimester shall be submitted, in writing, to the Personnel Department by October 15 of the current school year. Application for a leave starting third trimester shall be submitted, in writing, to the Personnel Department by February 1 of the current school year. Leaves may be granted beyond these deadlines with the concurrence of the Superintendent and the Association President.
- 6. The Board assumes the responsibility of notifying the member on layoff whether or not the member needs to consider the possibility of being recalled. Within 30 days of such notice of possible recall the member on layoff may request a leave under the provisions of the personal leave provisions of this agreement.
- 7. The provisions of Article XIV, Section L, subsection 1 are not applicable to this section.

K. Return from Leave

- 1. A member returning from a Public Office Leave, Peace Corps Leave, Association Leave, State and National Officer Leave or Sabbatical Leave shall be assigned to the same position or a substantially equivalent position.
- 2. Upon return of a member from any other leave provided for in this Article, the member will be placed in a position for which they are certified and qualified.

- 3. A member returning from a Voluntary Leave at the beginning of the second semester, at the beginning of the second trimester or at the beginning of the third trimester shall be placed into an existing vacancy for which the member is certified and qualified or, in the absence of such vacancy, to a permanent substitute position for the balance of the school year.
- L. Contractual Termination of Member Services

A member granted a leave under this contract may be terminated from employment if they do any one of the following:

- 1. Takes another contract for professional services or other full-time employment, unless specifically approved by the Board when granting the leave.
- 2. Fails to utilize a leave granted for the purpose as originally requested, and for which it was granted.
- 3. Fails to accept the specific assignment offered and for which the returning member is fully certificated to perform.
- 4. Fails to make satisfactory arrangements to return any wage overpayments to the Board within thirty (30) days from notification of the overpayment.
- 5. Acquires a medically substantiated incapacitation, which appears to be permanent, mental or physical, preventing resumption of contractual service on the date of the termination of such leave, as provided in the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act.
- M. A member may request three (3) days per year to participate in recognized religious holidays without the loss of leave time. The member will be required to make up those days through a mutually agreed upon time with the building administrator. In the event that the member and the building administrator are unable to arrive at a mutually acceptable time for the missed work time to be made up, the Association President and the Associate Superintendent shall meet to mutually establish a make-up time. In the event that the time is not made-up by the end of school year, the member will utilize leave time.

ARTICLE XV - School Calendar

- A. A. The Board recognizes the sincere interest of the Association in the formulation of the annual school calendar. It is the legal responsibility of the Board to establish such an annual calendar. The following are the policies to be utilized in establishing the calendar:
 - 1a. That the school year shall, for contract purposes, officially commence for non-probationary members on the Tuesday following Labor Day and shall consist of 179 work days for the 2015-2016 school year. In accordance with Schedule E, for the 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 school years, the school year shall, for contract purposes, officially commence for non-probationary members on the Wednesday immediately preceding Labor Day and shall consist of 185 work days.
 - 1b. That the school year shall, for contract purposes, officially commence for first and second year probationary members on the Wednesday immediately preceding Labor Day and shall consist of 182 work days for the 2015-2016 school year. For the 2016-2017 school year, the school year shall, for contract purposes, officially commence for first and second year probationary members on Friday, August 26, 2016, and shall consist of 188 work days. For the 2017-2018 school year, the school year shall, for contract purposes, officially commence for first and second year probationary members on Friday, August 25, 2017, and shall consist of 188 work days.
 - 1c. That the school year shall, for contract purposes, officially commence for third year probationary members on the Thursday immediately preceding Labor Day and shall consist of 181 work days for the 2015-2016 and school year. For the 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 school years, the school year shall, for contract purposes, officially commence for third year probationary members on the Monday immediately preceding Labor Day and shall consist of 187 work days.
 - 2. That the school year not exceed the 18th day of June in any year if all state attendance requirements for students are met by that date.
 - 3. That the Winter recess will be observed beginning no later than the end of the school day on the 23rd day of December and ending no earlier than the 1st day of January and all days within this period will not be scheduled as member work days unless otherwise legally mandated.

- 4. For the 2015-2016 school year, Mid-Winter Break will be scheduled for 5 consecutive days midway between the Winter and Spring Recesses on Monday, February 15, 2016, through Friday, February 19, 2016. For the 2016-2017 school year, Mid-Winter Break will be scheduled for 2 consecutive days midway between the Winter and Spring Recesses on February 20 and 21 of 2017. For the 2017-2018 school year, Mid-Winter Break will be scheduled for 2 consecutive days midway between the Winter and Spring Recess on February 19 and 20 of 2018.
- 5. That Spring Recess, for the 2015-2016 and 2017-2018 school years, begin at the end of the regular school day on Thursday preceding Good Friday and continue through the week following Good Friday and all days within this period will not be scheduled as member work days unless otherwise legally mandated. For the 2016-2017 school year, Spring Recess will be scheduled consistent with the common calendar adopted by the Wayne RESA Board of Education, in accordance with Public Act 101. Per the 2016-2017 common calendar, Spring Recess will be scheduled for 5 consecutive days from April 3, 2017, through April 7, 2017. While not contiguous with the 2016-2017 Spring Recess, Good Friday, scheduled for April 14, 2017, will not be scheduled as a member work day.
- 6. That the following days will not be scheduled as member work days:
 - (a) Thanksgiving Day
 - (b) The Friday following Thanksgiving Day
 - (c) Memorial Day
 - (d) Independence Day
- 7. Professional Development Days
 - a. Two (2) District wide common days: Martin Luther King Day and November Election Day.
 - b. Elementary and Middle School day: State May Election Day.
 - c. High School day: State May Election Day will be provided as a professional development day if the High School is in compliance with State mandated attendance days/hours/minutes of instruction for the given school calendar year.
- 8. Professional Development Days for Alternative Education Program
 - a. Martin Luther King Day
 - b. At least four (4) additional days as determined by the Program Director.

Article XV, Continued

- 9. Part-time program calendars shall be established and shall be made available to part time members as soon as practicable.
- B. The Official Full Time Calendar(s) is/are set forth in SCHEDULE E.

ARTICLE XVI - Staff/Curriculum Development Council

- A. The Staff/Curriculum Development Council shall serve as a coordinating and planning group for staff development, and curriculum concerns. SCDC shall be the organization through which all proposed curriculum changes are processed. Proposed changes shall be processed in a timely manner.
 - The Board of Education retains the right to make final curriculum decisions including those which may be contrary to the recommendation of SCDC. The superintendent shall have the right to attach alternative recommendations to any curriculum change proposed or opposed by SCDC.
- B. The council membership shall be comprised of one member representative from each elementary building, two member representatives from each secondary building from different content area, one member representative from the Program for Students with Autism, one member representative from the part-time program, one GCEA member-at-large, one administrator from each level, two administrators from Central Office, and one administrator-at-large. Bargaining unit members shall be selected per Association policy and procedure. The council shall have co-chairpersons, one a teacher and one an administrator, who shall chair alternate meetings.
- C. The council shall meet at least five (5) times per school year as determined by the council. Members serving on the council shall be given released time.
- D. The council shall be allowed to consult with any persons necessary to effectuate sound instructional programs.
- E. The conditions which follow shall govern member participation in the school improvement process as defined in PA 25 and encompassing all of its components.
 - 1. Member participation is crucial to the success of the school improvement process. The parties recognize that there will be different levels of member participation in that process.
 - 2. No school improvement team nor the district team may alter the collective bargaining agreement. Contractual or association concerns shall be dealt with per provisions of Article XII. A. or Article XIII.G.
 - 3. a. The district L-SIP/Leadership for School Improvement Committee shall consist of GCEA members equal to the number of administrators who sit on the team.
 - b. The district school improvement committee shall consist of one GCEA member from each classroom building to be appointed by the GCEA

- President, the GCEA President or their designee, and other persons as stipulated in the law. (PA 25)
- c. Membership of the site-based school improvement committees shall include GCEA members and representatives of all school employee groups in the building as required by law. Building employees and principal will mutually select the building school improvement committee.
- 4. Participation/non-participation in committees, which is voluntary, shall not be used as the criteria for evaluation, discipline and/or discharge.
- 5. School improvement activities and meetings which are scheduled during the members' regularly scheduled work day, shall not result in a loss of contractual pay.
- 6. A recommendation made by the building level school improvement committee must be approved by consensus or a minimum of 75% of the members who will be affected by that decision. Once approved, a decision shall be implemented by the total staff.
- 7. All specific school improvement measures shall be for a specific duration not to exceed one school year. All school improvement measures/recommendations shall be reviewed by school improvement committees in May of each year for future or continued implementation.
 - Continued measures and/or proposed recommendations shall be provided to the Superintendent and the Association President not later than June 1 of each year.

ARTICLE XVII - Part-Time Members

A. Definitions

- 1. Part-time members shall be defined as those requiring certification employed outside the traditional public school day program.
- 2. Seniority shall be defined as in Article XXI, A.
- 3. Building shall be defined as the Part-Time Program.
- 4. Certification, Assignment, Preference
 - a. Certification shall be defined as the member's teaching areas as designated by the State.
 - b. Assignment shall be defined as certification.
 - c. Preference shall be defined as hours, courses, time frames, and site, in that order.
- 5. Semester shall be defined as 60 hours of instruction for High School completion and ABE. Exceptions to this definition shall include Summer School, Driver Education, ABE-MI, ABE-ESL, Parochial, DLP Summer Program, Dental Assistant, Grant-Related Programs, and other contracted services as may be developed. Notification of Grant-Related Programs and other contracted services shall be given to the Association.
- 6. Notification, Application and Tentative Assignment shall be defined as:
 - a. Notification: Prior to April 15th for the entire year, specifying work availability for any of the sessions; Summer, Fall, or Winter, for the upcoming school year.
 - b. Application: Summer programs prior to April 30th; Fall/Winter programs prior to August 15th.
 - c. Tentative Assignment: Summer programs prior to May 15th for Extended Year Program for Students with Autism, prior to first day of class for Alternative Education Program; Fall programs prior to first day of class; Winter programs prior to first day of class.
- 7. Placement shall be defined by semester.
- B. Positions in all part-time programs shall be filled on a voluntary basis by regularly certified members from the part-time seniority list of the Garden City School System working within their areas of certification.
- C. Compensation as per Article III, Section H Independence Day (July 4) shall be a paid holiday for members regularly employed in the part-time summer program if the program starts prior to July 4th. A part-time member must be in pay status for their scheduled work day immediately preceding and following the

- holiday to be eligible for such payment. Compensation shall be paid on the same schedule as are full-time members.
- D. The normal member load in the Part-Time program shall not exceed 24 hours per week. Fifteen percent (15%) of assigned teacher/counselor hours shall be compensated for preparation time.
- E. The Assignment Process is premised on the recognition that all teaching positions are vacant prior to the beginning of each semester. The process involves three steps:
 - Step 1. Every part-time member shall choose 2 classes (defined as 60 instructional hours per semester per class) based on seniority, certification, and preference. Part-time members who worked any session during the previous school year shall choose their first 2 classes before those on the seniority list who did not work the prior year, provided that a part-time member with greater seniority is not prevented from bidding due to a lack of available classes for which they are certified.
 - Step 2. By seniority, certification, and preference each part-time member shall choose up to two (2) additional classes (defined as (120) instructional hours). In the event that the part-time program changes to a trimester schedule, members may choose one (1) additional class during the 3rd and 4th rounds with a maximum of six (6) classes and a maximum of four (4) preparations in any trimester.
 - Step 3. All new openings after the initial bidding process at the Part-Time program will be filled during one post bid meeting just prior to the start of the session. The process will be based in order of the following criteria:
 - 1. Availability (person bidding has that period open in their current schedule)
 - 2. Highly Qualified/endorsed in open subject area
 - 3. Staff with fewest classes assigned
 - 4. Seniority
- F. Any part-time member, who works in excess of twenty-four (24) hours per week, shall sign a waiver confirming their part-time status, acknowledging that their compensation is as identified in Article III, Section H of this agreement, and waiving any claim to fringe benefits as delineated in Schedule B of this agreement. Additionally, the waiver will confirm that the member is working more than twenty-four (24) hours per week at their own request.
- G. Leave time shall be defined as per Article XIV, Section A.1.
- H. Teaching conditions shall be established as per Article VI.

- I. Part-time members shall not be required to work in excess of a five (5) day week. No member shall be denied a summer teaching position for refusal to make a commitment exceeding eight (8) weeks. Members shall be obliged to remain on duty as long as needed in the event of emergency situations such as severe weather warnings, civil disturbances, or other situations which threaten the health or safety of students.
- J. Discipline of a member shall be defined as per Article VIII.
- K. Additions to the part-time program shall be made only when no current member can be placed according to seniority, certification, and preference. If additional positions become available, the Board will hire properly certified teachers for those positions in the following order of preference:
 - 1. Currently laid-off members
 - 2. Currently employed full-time members
 - 3. Others
- L. During those periods when the following counseling/guidance activities, with the exception of routine registration work functions, are required:
 - 1. evaluation of credits/transcripts; or
 - 2. advising students regarding class selections and graduation requirements; such activities shall be offered to bargaining unit members by seniority, who possess counseling certification. Members shall be compensated per Article III, Section H. Aside from those activities enumerated in Section K.1 or K.2 above, the Board may or may not offer additional registration activities to bargaining unit members. The Board shall determine the rate of pay for such additional non-bargaining unit activities, if offered.
- M. The Board agrees that the Alternative Education Program shall not cause the loss of any GCEA positions; should the number of students for which the Board receives funding equal to that of K-12 students, equal or exceed the class size limit in the High School, an additional position will be added to the regular High School schedule and will be assigned as such. The Board agrees to discourage the use of Alternative Education in lieu of regular K-12 programming and that the program will not be used to lessen the number of the GCEA members.

ARTICLE XVIII - Special Teaching Assignments

- A. Supervision by a member of a student teacher(s) shall be voluntary.
- B. Any tenure member may volunteer to supervise a student teacher. A list of those volunteering will be kept current.
- C. The Board shall disclose the amounts of monies received from colleges and universities for placing student teachers. These monies shall be remitted directly to the respective supervising members.
- D. 1. The Board of Education may employ a maximum of twenty (20) people in reserve member status. Reserve member status would be available to only those members who are laid off at the end of the current school year and who qualify for twenty-six (26) weeks of unemployment compensation.
 - 2. Laid off members must sign a letter of agreement accepting the reserve member status position on or before the last regular work day of the current school year.
 - 3. The reserve member will be assigned substitute duties. When no substitute assignments are available, the reserve member shall be assigned to tutoring, media center, library, curriculum development and/or in-service. Whenever possible, the reserve member will fill long-term assignments. The reserve member work day will be in accordance with Schedule D. If the reserve member is called back from layoff to regular status, all days worked shall count toward a salary schedule increment.
 - 4. The reserve member shall be compensated at one hundred dollars (\$100) per day up to a maximum of 183 days per school year. The Board of Education shall provide all benefits identified under Schedule C of this agreement to reserve members.
 - 5. If additional positions in part-time programs which are currently covered by this agreement become available, the Board will hire properly certified members for those positions in the following order of preference:
 - a. currently laid-off members
 - b. currently employed full-time members
 - c. others

ARTICLE XIX - Professional Improvement

- A. The parties support the principle of continuing training of members, participation by members in professional organizations in the areas of their specialization, leaves for work on advanced degrees or special studies, and participation in community educational projects.
- B. The Board agrees to provide, through the building and departmental budgets, and as approved by the immediate administrator, the necessary funds for members to attend selected professional conferences. This shall be made known and will be accessible in a fair and equitable manner to all members. Appropriate expenses incurred in attendance and sufficient leave time without loss of compensation shall be granted to the member by the Board.
- C. A reassigned member program will be continued through SCDC that provides the opportunity for members to receive additional training, course work, or support help where they are assigned to a course or grade level significantly different than anything they have taught in the last five years. This will also be offered where their training or experience is found to be deficient in some manner. The extent of this retraining help will be offered equally to all members in a similar situation contingent upon the availability of funds. The retraining fund will be budgeted at the rate of \$100 per member in the Dearborn Continuing Education credit Program, but with a minimum of \$5,000. This fund will be administered jointly by the Co-chairpersons (administrator and member) of SCDC.
- D. The Administration shall schedule nine (9) half days of released time for all Program for Students with Autism members for the express purpose of inservice training contingent upon the availability of outside funding.
- E. Mentor Teachers
 - 1. A. Mentor Teacher shall be defined as a Master Teacher as identified in Section 1526 of the School Code and shall perform the duties of a Master Teacher as specified in the code. The Mentor Teacher shall be a member of the bargaining unit.
 - 2. The Mentor Teacher shall be available to provide professional support, instruction and guidance. The purpose of the mentor assignment is to provide a peer who can offer assistance, resources and information in a non-threatening collegial fashion.
 - 3. A Mentor Teacher shall be assigned in accordance with the following:
 - a. The Mentor Teacher shall be a tenured member of the bargaining unit.

- b. Participation as a Mentor Teacher shall be voluntary.
- c. The principal and the building union representatives shall make mentor teacher assignments. Where no agreement can be reached as to which teacher shall be assigned, the Superintendent and the Union President shall make the assignment.
- d. Every effort will be made to match Mentor Teachers and probationary teachers who work in the same building and have the same area of certification.
- e. The Mentor Teacher assignment shall be for one (1) year subject to review by the Mentor Teacher and probationary teacher after 8 months. The appointment may be renewed in succeeding years.
- 4. Mentor Teachers will have no involvement in the evaluation process and the relationship will be collaborative and confidential. While the relationship is to be confidential, such shall not negate the responsibilities of either the mentor or probationary teacher to meet their legal obligations. Probationary teachers, likewise, will not participate in any way in the evaluation of mentors. The performance of the mentor teacher as a mentor shall not be a proper subject for the evaluation procedure. Further, the mentor teacher shall not be called as a witness, by either party, in any grievance or administrative hearing involving the mentee's probationary performance and/or as related to the continued employment of the mentee, nor shall the mentee be called as a witness, by either party, in any grievance or administrative hearing involving the performance of the mentor teacher in his/her role as a mentor.
- 5. Suggested standards for release time for the probationary teacher will be the configuration of up to a half day per month for the first year, up to a half day every other month in the second year, and up to a half day every three months in the third year. Requests for greater time spent with the probationary teacher will be addressed with the building principal. It is also understood that time between the Mentor Teacher and the probationary teacher may take place weekly beyond the normal working day to establish this collaborative relationship. Time commitments beyond this minimum may be subject to revision due to state mandates.
- 6. A minimum of once a year, both mentors and probationary teachers will be updated on the legal ramifications of said program.

ARTICLE XX - Maintenance of Professional Standards

- A. The Board sets the following continuing standards for hiring teachers:
 - 1. No new members shall be hired who have not completed a minimum of the bachelor's degree at a recognized college or university.
 - 2. No members shall be hired who have not completed the requirements of the Michigan Certification Code, as amended, and have been recommended for at least the Provisional Teaching Certificate.
 - 3. New members shall be certified and "highly qualified" in at least two (2) areas of teaching. Should the district choose to employ any teacher with only one area of teaching certification, said teacher shall not be allowed to force a more senior teacher from the member's preferred assignment at any time or for any reason in the future.
 - 4. Persons with less than the above minimum requirements may be hired in an emergency situation until adequate certificated personnel meeting the above requirements are available.
- B. In order to provide the children of the School District with broader perspectives and to encourage awareness and appreciation of the contributions of varied cultures, races, ethnic and religious groups, etc. to the American society, the Board shall continue to make every effort when filling vacancies to hire competent personnel with various cultural, racial, ethnic, and religious background.
- C. The Garden City Board of Education agrees not to outsource jobs or other duties which have been traditionally K-12 or otherwise contemplated in Article I, the Recognition Clause. The Garden City Board of Education agrees that no additional K-12 regular positions or students will be placed in the Continuing Education Program unless agreed to by the Association. It is understood that where the school district is currently using outside instructors (for example the cosmetology program) the District may continue to do so.
- D. The use of a student teacher as a substitute teacher in a classroom, other than the critic member's classroom, shall require the approval of the critic member.

ARTICLE XXI - Seniority, Layoff, Recall, Consolidation

A. Seniority

- 1. Seniority shall be defined as the continuous length of service within the bargaining unit as defined in ARTICLE I. Such service will begin with the official date of hire by the Board of Education.
- 2. The seniority of members previously employed by Wayne County Intermediate School District and employed by Garden City Schools as the result of the acquisition of the Program for Students with Autism in the Fall of 1978 and 1979 shall be defined as the continuous length of service from their date of hire by Wayne County Intermediate School District.
- 3. When a seniority question arises with respect to more than one individual member having the same official date of hire by the Board of Education, relative seniority shall be determined by the first date at work in pay status and then, if necessary, lottery draw. In the event a lottery draw is necessary, all individuals affected will have an opportunity to participate in the drawing and the Association and the members so affected will be notified in writing of the date, place, and time of the drawing. The drawing shall be conducted openly and at a time and place which will reasonably allow affected members and Association representatives an opportunity to be in attendance. In the event affected members do not attend the applicable lottery drawing, the Association representative will participate in the drawing in place of the member.
- 4. A member shall lose his seniority if he resigns, retires, accepts an administrative position not in compliance with the following provisions, or is discharged by the Board.
 - Administrators who previously taught in the Garden City School District and are currently, as of September 1, 1979, employed as administrators, shall retain their status on the member seniority list provided their service to the district has been continuous from their first date of hire. Members currently in the bargaining unit as of September 1, 1979, who were previously employed as administrators in the Garden City School District, shall be considered to have continuous service for the purposes of establishing their seniority date. All others shall be subject to the following:
 - (a) Administrators shall have no seniority within the bargaining unit;

ARTICLE XXI, continued

- (b) Members desiring to transfer to a Garden City administrative position may do so for a two (2) year period without jeopardizing their seniority status. At the end of the two (2) year period, if the member chooses not to return to the bargaining unit, all seniority shall be forfeited.
- 5. Updated district-wide seniority lists, including name, seniority date, and areas of certification shall be established by the Board at least annually. Fifty (50) copies of said lists shall be supplied to the Association by February 1 of each year, in the following manner:
 - (a) the employer shall supply two (2) copies of the list to a building representative designated by the Association in each building;
 - (b) the remainder of the copies shall be supplied to the Association president. Part-time members' seniority date shall be the first day in pay status in a part-time position in the district.
 - No member can transfer seniority from the part-time program to the full-time program.
- 6. Consideration shall be given to the part-time members for additions to the full-time seniority list.

B. Layoff

Should changes in student population, financial, or other conditions make necessary a general reduction in the number of members employed by the Board, members will be laid off in the following order: (The Board will endeavor to give the Association at least fifteen (15) days notice prior to implementation of said reduction.)

- 1. Members on ninety (90) day or emergency certificates including interns will be laid off before all others.
- 2. Probationary members will be laid off on a last in first out seniority basis, except that the Board may pass over for layoff any member who because of specialized certification cannot be replaced in established programs.
- 3. If a further reduction is necessary, tenure members will be laid off on a last in first out seniority basis, except that the Board may pass over for layoff any member who because of specialized certification cannot be replaced in established programs.

ARTICLE XXI, continued

- C. Any member transfer that is a direct or indirect result of layoff procedure shall be considered voluntary.
- D. Consolidation, Annexation, Merger

To the full extent permitted by law, this Agreement shall be binding upon the Board and its successor personnel and upon any school district into which or with which this district shall be merged or combined. In the event this district shall be combined with one or more districts, the Board will use its best efforts to assure the continued recognition of the Association and the continued employment of its members in such consolidated district. Members employed in the Garden City Schools will be given preference for positions in those school buildings which exist at the time this Agreement is ratified or are constructed during the life of this Agreement. The District shall give the Association as much notice as possible if it is likely that a merger or consolidation will take place, in case the Association needs to bargain wages, hours or conditions of employment with another employer. The Board shall not agree to or allow any annexation, consolidation, or merger, in whole or in part, involving the School District of the City of Garden City, unless the seniority rights of G.C.E.A. members are not disadvantaged. The intent of this language is to insure that G.C.E.A. members are treated equally with respect to the determination of their relative seniority in the newly formed district.

E. Recall

- 1. Members shall be called back from layoff on a last-out, first-back basis if such call-back occurs prior to the opening of the school year. Members shall be called back from layoff on a last-out, first-back basis as positions become vacant in their area of certification during the school year such that no disruptions of existing established member assignments are necessary. A member shall not be required to return for less than a full-time, full year position, except that in no such case shall the employer be construed to have waived its right to contest payment of additional unemployment benefits.
- 2. This layoff procedure is not to be interpreted to give probationary members greater rights than tenure members.
- 3. All members shall have an indefinite right to be recalled from layoff, except as provided below in this paragraph. Members who are recalled shall return to the district, permanently sever from the district or request a leave under provisions of Article XV except that no member who is recalled while under

ARTICLE XXI, continued

contract with another district shall forfeit their right to recall so long as the existing contract predates the notice of recall. Members who do not accept a recall as a result of being under contract with another district as described above shall forfeit their right to recall in Garden City for the balance of that school year only. Notwithstanding the above provisions of this paragraph, the right to recall for a member who has signed a contract with another public school district shall be five (5) years or the length of the member's seniority, whichever is lesser.

F. ARTICLE V, Section F shall guide the spirit and intent of this Article.

ARTICLE XXII - Miscellaneous Provisions

- A. This Agreement shall supersede any contrary or inconsistent terms contained in any individual member contract in effect or to be written, during the term of this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall be considered part of the established policies of the Board. The Board of Education reserves the right to adopt rules, regulations, and practices not inconsistent with this contract. This provision does not preclude the rights of the Association under ARTICLE I, Section A Recognition. Copies of Board Policy Manuals shall be placed in all building manuals.
- B. If any provision of this Agreement or its application shall be found to be contrary to law, such provision or application shall be deemed invalid but all other provisions or applications shall be continued in full force and effect for the duration of the Agreement.
- C. Members of the Association, the bargaining unit, and the officers thereof, individually and collectively, share with the administration and Board the mutual responsibility of the total enforcement of this Agreement.
- D. This agreement and established past practices shall constitute the full and complete commitment between both parties. Any party asserting the existence of a past practice shall have the burden of proof with a preponderance of evidence.
- E. Should a third party challenge the validity of any of the provisions of this contract by filing a grievance or a suit at law, both the Association and the Board will actively defend against such suit(s) and share equally any cost of such defense.
- F. Electronic copies of this Agreement shall be provided within fifteen (15) business days of ratification, at the expense of the Board, to all members now or hereafter employed. Three (3) signed copies shall be forwarded to the GCEA.
- G. All members, who are Garden City residents, may utilize the District's regular latchkey program without cost. Members who elect to utilize this option shall register their children during the regular latchkey enrollment period, pick up their children from the latchkey program not later than thirty (30) minutes after the end of their regular work schedule, and comply with all rules and regulations that pertain to other residents who utilize the service.

ARTICLE XXII, continued

- H. A Finance Review Committee composed of three Association representatives and three Administrative representatives shall meet at least once a month during regular work hours to review finances (i.e., revenue, expenditures, cash flow, forecasts for the future, etc.). Members of this committee shall have the opportunity to provide direct input to Board Finance Committee.
- I. In the event a National Health Program is enacted that would affect the health care benefit of this agreement in any way, or the tax status of the benefit, the parties agree to negotiate the impact of such changes. The parties agree that the goal of such negotiations shall be to maintain current health care benefits at their current level and costs so as to minimize any negative tax consequences to the members and/or any unanticipated cost increase for the district.
- J. The parties understand and agree that this Agreement must be interpreted and applied consistent with the terms of the No Child Left Behind Act, as such terms become effective, and the Union and District agree to work cooperatively in implementing the terms of the Act.

2015-2016 GCEA

				7%0	7% Off Schedul	edule Reduction Based on 2013-2014 Schedule A	n Based or	n 2013-201	4 Schedule	A e				
Step		B.A		BA + 15		MA		MA+15		MA+30		Ed Spec		PhD/EdD
P1		33,303				38,299		1	1	42,961		45,292		47,624
P2		35,968		•		40,963				45,625		47,956		50,288
0	1.00	37,166	1.07	39,768	1.15	42,741	1.22	45,342	1.29	47,944	1.36	50,546	1.43	53,148
-	1.08	40,140	1.15	42,741	1.23	45,714	1.30	48,315	1.37	50,918	1.44	53,519	1.51	56,121
2	1.13	41,998	1.20	44,599	1.28	47,572	1.35	50,174	1.42	52,776	1.49	55,377	1.56	57,979
က	1.18	43,856	1.25	46,457	1.34	49,802	1.41	52,404	1.49	55,377	1.56	57,979	1.63	60,580
4	1.23	45,714	1.30	48,315	1.40	52,033	1.47	54,634	1.56	57,979	1.63	60,580	1.70	63,182
5	1.29	47,944	1.36	50,546	1.46	54,262	1.54	57,236	1.63	60,580	1.70	63,182	1.77	65,784
9	1.35	50,174	1.42	52,776	1.53	56,864	1.61	59,837	1.70	63,182	1.77	65,784	1.84	68,385
7	1.42	52,776	1.49	55,377	1.60	59,465	1.68	62,438	1.77	65,784	1.84	68,385	1.91	70,987
80	1.49	55,377	1.56	61,979	1.67	62,067	1.75	65,040	1.84	68,385	1.91	70,987	1.98	73,588
တ	1.56	62,979	1.63	60,580	1.74	64,668	1.82	67,642	1.91	70,987	1.98	73,588	2.05	76,190
10	1.63	085'09	1.70	63,182	1.82	67,642	1.89	70,244	1.98	73,588	2.05	76,190	2.12	78,791
11					1.94	72,102	1.97	73,217	2.05	76,190	2.12	78,791	2.19	81,393

	ongevity paid	-		
	gev	0		
	Lon			
	14		11 8	
				Ŋ,
				j
Rate				
				1

24 \$1,000.00	29 \$1,500.00	r more \$2,000.00
years 20 - 24	years 25 - 29	years 30 or more
Longevity paid		

*7 PERCENT OFF SCHEDULE REDUCTION, EXCLUDING STEPS P1-P4 (based on 2013-2014 Schedule A) Step 0 will be considered the "BA base" for which all Schedule B pay and part-time hourly rates are calculated P1 will be considered the base for which all voluntary extra duty assignment hourly rates are calculated Does not apply to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter Applies only to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter

STEPS FROZEN FOR 2015-2016

Notes:

- All figures rounded to the nearest dollar
- 2. Up to eleven (11) years total is allowed on the salary schedule for outside military Two years military experience equals one year on the schedule to a maximum of two and teaching experience singly, or in combination for the school year 2011-2012. years on the salary schedule for maximum service.
- 3. The M.S.W. degree will be paid at Masters+15 hours, and all residue of semester hours beyond the M.A.+15 will be applied to the M.A.+30.
- 4. Teachers with vocational certificates and teaching high school students for which vocational reimbursement shall not be paid a three years' credit for vocational industrical arts in 1970-71 through 1982-83 shall continue to receive such credit prorated to the salary higher than that indicated in Schedule AAA, except that teachers who received two years' credit for business education or portion of the day in which they are involved in such programs.
- 5. All salaries on individual contracts will be balanced in accordance with past practice.
- 6. A teacher in pay status for two-thirds (2/3) of the schedule working days of a semester will receive on-half (1/2) a year experience credit on the salary schedule for that semester.

2016-2017 GCEA

				0%/	7% Off Schedul	edule Reduction Based on 2013-2014 Schedule A	n Based o	n 2013-201	4 Schedule	V a				
Step		B.A		BA + 15		MA		MA+15		MA+30		Ed Spec	Ī	PhD/EdD
P1		33,303		•		38,299				42,961		45,292		47,624
P2		35,968				40,963		•		45,625		47,956		50,288
0	1.00	37,166	1.07	39,768	1.15	42,741	1.22	45,342	1.29	47,944	1.36	50,546	1.43	53,148
	1.08	40,140	1.15	42,741	1.23	45,714	1.30	48,315	1.37	50,918	1.44	53,519	1.51	56,121
2	1.13	41,998	1.20	44,599	1.28	47,572	1.35	50,174	1.42	52,776	1.49	55,377	1.56	57,979
3	1.18	43,856	1.25	46,457	1.34	49,802	1.41	52,404	1.49	55,377	1.56	57,979	1.63	60,580
4	1.23	45,714	1.30	48,315	1.40	52,033	1.47	54,634	1.56	62,979	1.63	60,580	1.70	63,182
2	1.29	47,944	1.36	50,546	1.46	54,262	1.54	57,236	1.63	60,580	1.70	63,182	1.77	65,784
9	1.35	50,174	1.42	52,776	1.53	56,864	1.61	59,837	1.70	63,182	1.77	65,784	1.84	68,385
7	1.42	52,776	1.49	55,377	1.60	59,465	1.68	62,438	1.77	65,784	1.84	68,385	1.91	70,987
80	1.49	55,377	1.56	57,979	1.67	62,067	1.75	65,040	1.84	68,385	1.91	70,987	1.98	73,588
o	1.56	62,829	1.63	60,580	1.74	64,668	1.82	67,642	1.91	70,987	1.98	73,588	2.05	76,190
10	1.63	60,580	1.70	63,182	1.82	67,642	1.89	70,244	1.98	73,588	2.05	76,190	2.12	78,791
11	100				1.94	72.102	1.97	73.217	2.05	76.190	212	78.791	2.19	81,393



Longevity paid	years 20 - 24	\$1,000.00
	years 25 - 29	\$1,500.00
	years 30 or more	\$2,000.00

*7 PERCENT OFF SCHEDULE REDUCTION, EXCLUDING STEPS P1-P4 (based on 2013-2014 Schedule A) Step 0 will be considered the "BA base" for which all Schedule B pay and part-time hourly rates are calculated P1 will be considered the base for which all voluntary extra duty assignment hourly rates are calculated Does not apply to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter Applies only to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter STEPS FROZEN FOR 2016-2017

Notes:

- 1. All figures rounded to the nearest dollar
- 2. Up to eleven (11) years total is allowed on the salary schedule for outside military portion of the day in which they are involved in such programs. Two years military experience equals one year on the schedule to a maximum of two and teaching experience singly, or in combination for the school year 2011-2012. years on the salary schedule for maximum service.
- 3. The M.S.W. degree will be paid at Masters+15 hours, and all residue of semester hours beyond the M.A.+15 will be applied to the M.A.+30.
- 4. Teachers with vocational certificates and teaching high school students for which vocational reimbursement shall not be paid a three years' credit for vocational industrical arts in 1970-71 through 1982-83 shall continue to receive such credit prorated to the salary higher than that indicated in Schedule AAA, except that teachers who received two years' credit for business education or
- 5. All salaries on individual contracts will be balanced in accordance with past practice.
- 6. A teacher in pay status for two-thirds (2/3) of the schedule working days of a semester will receive on-half (1/2) a year experience credit on the salary schedule for that semester.

2017-2018 GCEA

1.56 59,226 1.63 61,883 1.70 64,541 1.63 61,883 1.70 64,541 1.70 64,541 1.77 67,198 1.77 67,198 1.84 69,855 1.74 69,855 1.91 72,514 1.84 69,855 1.91 72,514 1.91 72,514 1.98 75,171 1.98 75,171 2.05 77,829 1.98 75,171 2.05 77,829
59,226 1.30 59,226 59,226 61,883 61,883 61,883 62,541 64,541 1.77 67,198 67,198 1.84 69,855 69,855 1.91 72,514 72,514 1.98 75,171 2.05 77,829
59,226 1.55 61,883 1.70 64,541 1.77 67,198 1.84 69,855 1.91 72,514 1.98
59,226 61,883 64,541 67,198 69,855 72,514
1.56 1.77 1.77 1.94 1.91
55,809 58,467 61,124 63,781 66,439 69,096
1.54 1.54 1.68 1.68 1.75 1.82
50,673 53,152 55,429 58,087 60,744 63,402 66,059
1.40 1.46 1.53 1.60 1.67 1.74
47,430 49,354 51,633 53,911 56,568 61,883 64,541
1.36 1.42 1.49 1.56 1.63
44,733 46,697 48,975 51,253 53,911 56,568 59,226 61,883
1.23 1.29 1.35 1.42 1.49 1.56
0 4 5 9 7 8 6 0
2 C 7 C 7 C 7 C 7 C 7 C 7 C 7 C 7 C 7 C

\$1,000.0	\$1,500.0	\$2,000.0
years 20 - 24	years 25 - 29	years 30 or more
Longevity paid		

000

*5 PERCENT OFF SCHEDULE REDUCTION, EXCLUDING STEPS P1-P4 (based on 2013-2014 Schedule A) Step 0 will be considered the "BA base" for which all Schedule B pay and part-time hourly rates are calculated P1 will be considered the base for which all voluntary extra duty assignment hourly rates are calculated Does not apply to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter Applies only to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter **STEPS FROZEN FOR 2017-2018**

Notes:

- 1. All figures rounded to the nearest dollar
- Up to eleven (11) years total is allowed on the salary schedule for outside military po and teaching experience singly, or in combination for the school year 2011-2012.
 Two years military experience equals one year on the schedule to a maximum of two years on the salary schedule for maximum service.
- 3. The M.S.W. degree will be paid at Masters+15 hours, and all residue of semester hours beyond the M.A.+15 will be applied to the M.A.+30.
- 4. Teachers with vocational certificates and teaching high school students for which vocational reimbursement shall not be paid a three years' credit for vocational industrical arts in 1970-71 through 1982-83 shall continue to receive such credit prorated to the salary higher than that indicated in Schedule AAA, except that teachers who received two years' credit for business education or portion of the day in which they are involved in such programs.
- 5. All salaries on individual contracts will be balanced in accordance with past practice.
- 6. A teacher in pay status for two-thirds (2/3) of the schedule working days of a semester will receive on-half (1/2) a year experience credit on the salary schedule for that semester.

SCHEDULE B

Co-Curricular Pay Schedule

Teachers involved in extra duty assignments will be compensated at the following percentages of the B.A. Salary Schedule A in existence at the beginning of the school year. Each year of experience in the activity is equal to one step on the schedule to a maximum of Step 4.

High School Athletics

Athletic Director

14.3%

Athletic Director at the high school shall be released from all classroom teaching responsibilities. The entire day workday shall be used for preparation and duties related to the Athletic Department.

The compensation percents for the following positions identified on Schedule B shall be changed as follows:

Head Coaches:

Football		, ,	1 .		11.25%
Basketball	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				11.25%
Wrestling					10.00%
Swimming					10.00%
Track					8.75%
Baseball					8.75%
Cross Country	,			``	8.75%
Tennis				•	8.75%
Golf	•				8.75%
Volleyball		•			8.75%
Softball					8.75%
Soccer					8.75%

Middle School Athletics

Athletic Director

4.00%

The Athletic Director at the Middle School shall be compensated an additional 8% (12% total) in lieu of released time.

Head Coaches:

Football	7.50%
Basketball	7.50%
Wrestling	6.25%
Track	6.25%
Baseball	6.25%
Volleyball	6.25%
J .	0.25%

All coaches' pay includes pre and post season practices and games

Assistant Coaches' schedule will be an amount equal to 70% of the Head Coaches' schedule in that sport.

Equal Pay Schedule - In accordance with Title IX, equal pay for equal work, all assignments (girls and boys) will be paid on the same basis. If there is a discrepancy on the length of the season, then the shortest season will be prorated accordingly.

Coaches occupying other coaching positions which may be created by the Board shall be paid amounts in a fair and equitable relationship to the above. To aid the Board in making its determinations relative to pay for these positions, athletic directors, affected principals, and a representative of the Association shall make joint recommendations concerning such.

HIGH SCHOOL

Cheerleading Newspaper Annual Debate or Forensics Band/Color Guard Art Vocal Music Stage Lighting Theater Arts (total per school for teachers & events) Senior Class Sponsor (Per person, maximum of three (3) persons) Junior Class Sponsor (Per person, maximum of two (2) persons) Sophomore Class Sponsor (Per person, maximum of two (2) persons) Student Council (one (1) teacher per building)	1.06%
Intramural Athletics Director (Per season – three (3) seasons) National Honor Society	2.21%
Mational Honor Society	3.00%
MIDDLE SCHOOL	
Spirit Club	0.6504
Cheerleading	2.65%
Newspaper	2.30%
Yearbook	2.30%
Class Play Directing	2.30%
Band – Junior High/Elementary	3.25%
(Per person, maximum of 2 persons)	4 000/
Student Council (one (1) person per building)	4.00%
Intramural Athletics Director	3.00%
(Two (2) persons per season - three (3) seasons)	1.77%
Vocal Music	3.00%
National Honor Society	
	3.00%
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL	
Safety Squad	3.25%
The state of the s	0.2070

SPECIAL SERVICES

Homebound Teacher* 3.54% Program for Students with Autism Newsletter (one position) 2.21%

*If required to work beyond the contractual reporting time and leaving time as determined, by the reporting and leaving time of the non-homebound base assignment.

Homebound Teacher's Daily Rate = B.A. Base x 3.54%

181

HIGH SCHOOL AND MIDDLE SCHOOL

- 1. Athletic Event Supervision (per event, per person)
 Same as hourly rate ARTICLE IV, Section G
- 2. Secondary School Department Coordinators .5% Full-time teacher equivalent in the department

Any positions (not on this schedule) restored from a previous schedule, shall be paid at the previous rates plus the general percentage increases called for in this schedule.

Released time of six (6) days per year provided to each elementary building to be used for chairmanship of such activities such as (Spelling Bee, Young Authors, Student Council, Christmas Programs, etc.) Administrator may approve additional released time at his/her discretion.

SCHEDULE C Insurance

Teacher Life Insurance Coverage

Life of Teacher

\$100,000

Accidental Death and Dismemberment

\$100,000

Dependent Life Insurance Coverage

Lives of dependent children -

\$10,000 each child

14 days to 19 years old (extended to 23 years if full-time college student)

Life of Spouse

\$10,000

Hospitalization Insurance Coverage for Teachers, Dependent Spouses and/or Dependent Children

Effective September 1, 2015, all members shall be enrolled in MESSA Choices II Plan or MESSA ABC Plan 1.

The District shall fully fund the insurance premiums up through the monetary amounts (the "hard cap" amounts), as long as the Board maintains the hard cap, subject to its rights pursuant to 2011 PA 152, MCL 15.563. Association members will contribute any remaining insurance premium costs beyond the hard cap, as long as the Board maintains the hard cap. The District and Association agree that they will engage in future discussions to attempt to find ways to control health care costs.

Teacher Long Term Disability Insurance Coverage (including medical disability resulting from pregnancy under Article XV, Section A.1.a.)

Qualifying Period:

Accident – exhaustion of accumulated sick leave *Sickness – 90 calendar days or the exhaustion of

Accumulated sick leave, whichever occurs last Workers' Compensation – after thirty (30) weeks

Benefit:

66 2/3% of monthly salary not to exceed a maximum of \$5,000

per month.

(Teacher Long Term Disability Insurance Coverage, Continued)

Maximum: Maximum Benefit Period Accident – Age 65 Sickness – Age 65

Type of Coverage 24 hour

Teacher Long Term Disability Insurance coverage - Continued

Integration with other income benefits

- 1. Workers Compensation
- 2. Michigan Public School Employee Retirement Fund
- 3. Social Security Family
- 4. Any employer-sponsored disability or retirement plan

Fringe benefits shall remain at no less than the benefits available on the last day that the member worked. Should benefits offered members of the bargaining unit increase, those members on Long Term Disability will be granted the increased benefits on his/her first day back at work. Waiting period shall be a ninety (90) day modified fill.

Short-term disability will be eliminated effective August 31, 2012. The parties will mutually develop a sick leave bank that is funded and administered by the Union.

Dental Insurance Coverage for Teachers, Dependent Spouses, and/or Dependent Children

Teachers who have dual dental insurance coverage as a consequence of their spouse's employment either with the Board or elsewhere shall receive Blue Cross 50-50-50 coverage.

The coverage will be as follows:

Blue Cross Dental

CR-RC-10-10

MBL \$1,500

OS-10

MBL \$2,500

Class I 100% Oral Examinations, X-rays, Fluoride Treatments, Cleanings, Emergency First Aid Treatment **

Class II

90% Restorative, Extractions, Root Canals, etc. **

Class III 90% Dentures, Bridges **

** \$1,500 Benefit

(Dental Insurance, Continued)

Class IV 90% Orthodontic Rider - \$2,500 lifetime benefit

Vision Insurance Coverage for Teachers, Dependent Spouses, and/or Dependent Children

The Board shall provide a group vision insurance program with the following annual benefits per teacher, dependent spouse, or dependent child (each).

1.	Examination	100% of reasonable & customary
2.	Single Vision Lenses	100% of reasonable & customary
3.	Bi-focal Lenses	100% of reasonable & customary
4.	Tri-focal Lenses	100% of reasonable & customary
5,	Lenticular Lenses	100% of reasonable & customary
6.	Frames	100% of reasonable & customary
7.	Contact Lenses	\$40.00 per lens. 100% of reasonable &
		customary charges is paid if visual acuity of the
	÷.	patient is not correctable to 20/70 in the better
		eye with conventional lenses but can be
		corrected to 20/70 or better by the use of
	· ·	contact lenses.
	·	•

An examination, frame and one pair of corrective lenses (including prescription sunglasses, photogray lenses, or contact lenses) will be provided once in a 12-month plan year for each eligible member of the family.

Legal Garden City Public Schools – self-administered basis, benefits equal to those provided by Super Meals II. Effective 9/1/2003, tax preparation will no longer be a covered benefit under this plan.

Legal coverage will no longer be a benefit as of August 31, 2012.

Option Eligible bargaining unit members not electing health insurance will receive \$100 per month (\$1,200 per year), to be remitted by the last day of each month.

NOTES

- 1. Teachers on approved leave may continue to carry the same coverage by paying group rates. Payments to begin within thirty (30) days from beginning of leave.
- 2. Teachers working the full contractual year will be covered through August 31 of that year even if employment is terminated prior to date.
- 3. A widow or widower of a teacher may carry dependent life, hospitalization, and major medical coverage by paying the group rates until remarriage.

CATEGORY A-1 ELECTION FORM

(Full-time members (working a full day) of Garden City Education Association --except for Adult Education (Credit) teachers.)

form must be completed and retur ce

(Insurano	ce).	eu anu	recurned	to the	Business	offic
Name of	Employee	-				
Reti	urn Deadline: • Cont	inuing owing pl	Employees:	Septemb	per 30,	for th
	• <u>Newl</u> work	y-hired	employees:	30 day	s after :	startin
. 0	I elect the current	medical	plan as my	healthc	are cover	age.
	I elect the Communi with a \$250 annual applied in one of the Cash payment Additional li	he follo	ving ways:	as my hea ne cash	althcare c payment n	coverage will be
` []	I have healthcare co					
~	plan, and I wish to and to receive, in monthly \$100 install	waive castead,	Overson fo	r the up	coming pla \$1,200 p	en year aid in
electio a chang cash pa	have read and und so program offered ben-above-is-irrevocable in family status. The syment in lieu of he which I have indicate.	y the b le-for-th I also t althcare	istrict an ie-upcoming inderstand	d I und planye	erstand t ar unless	hat my I have
PERIOD O	IS ELECTION WILL CON LESS I FILE A NEW R AS ALLOWED DUE TO REQUIRES A NEW ELECT	A CHANG	DURING TE IN FAMTI	id oppma	· — — .	
Date: _			·: ·			•
, .		En	ployee			· .
Date: _		<u></u>		•		
		Em (t	ployee,'s	Spouse, tained	if application only if	able the

employee elects the cash payments)

[&]quot;plan year" is the twelve-month period beginning on October 1 and ending the following September 30.

Copy information from ID card.

CATEGORY A-2 ELECTION FORM

(Full-time members, (working a full day) of Garden City Education Association --except for Adult Education (Credit).teachers, whose hire date is on or after 7/1/02.)

This form must be completed and returned to the Business office (Insurance).

Name of Employee

Return Deadline: • Continuing Employees: September 30, for the following plan year.

Newly-hired employees: 30 days after starting work.

During 1st Two Years Of Employment:

- I elect the Community Blue PPO plan as my healthcare coverage
- G I have healthcare coverage under the

plan, and I wish to waive coverage for the upcoming plan year and to receive, instead, cash payments of \$1,200 paid in monthly \$100 installments.

After 1st Two Years Of Employment:

- I elect the current medical plan as my healthcare coverage or the plan that provides benefits equal to those in force for employees hired prior to 7/1/02.
 - I elect the Community Blue PPO plan as my healthcare coverage with a \$250 annual cash payment. The cash payment will be applied in one of the following ways:

 _____ Cash payment

Additional life insurance

I have healthcare coverage under the

plan, and I wish to waive coverage for the upcoming plan year and to receive, instead, cash payments of \$1,200 paid in monthly \$100 installments.

I have read and understand the explanation of the flexible benefits program offered by the District and I understand that my election above is irrevocable for the upcoming plan year unless I have a change in family status. I also understand that I cannot elect the

cash payment in lieu of healthcare coverage unless I have alternate coverage (which I have indicated above).

THIS ELECTION WILL CONTINUE IN EFFECT FOR ALL SUBSEQUENT PLAN YEARS UNLESS I FILE A NEW ELECTION DURING THE SEPTEMBER ENROLLMENT PERIOD OR AS ALLOWED DUE TO A CHANGE IN FAMILY STATUS OR UNLESS THE DISTRICT REQUIRES A NEW ELECTION TO BE FILED.

Date:		
		Employee
, Date:	•	•
		Employee,'s Spouse, if applicable (to be obtained only if the employee elects the cash payments)

A "plan year" is the twelve-month period beginning on October 1 and ending the following September 30.

^{*} Copy information from ID card.

CATEGORY B-1 ELECTION FORM (Full-time members (working less than a full day) of Garden City Education Association - except for Adult Education (Credit) teachers.)

This form must be completed and returned to the Business office (Insurance). Name of Employee Return Deadline: • Continuing Employees: September 30, for the following plan year. * Newly-hired employees: 30 days after starting work. · Percentage of full-time specified in contract % Fringe Benefit Cost (Purchase Credit if benefit not elected): Healthcare (choose one) __Current Medical Plan BC/BS Community Blue PPO with \$ Cash Payment, or Additional Life Dental Vision Life/AD & D Short-Term Disability Long-Term Disability TOTAL NOTE: You may elect cash (paid as additional taxable compensation) in lieu of healthcare benefits. If you do not elect cash in lieu of healthcare benefits, then you will not receive any purchase credits based on healthcare. The total amount of additional cash compensation is an annual amount equal to the above percentage, multiplied by \$1,200. In your case this equals \$. If you wish to receive cash in lieu of healthcare coverage please check this box: You may not elect cash in lieu of any other fringe benefit, except for the PPO option as indicted above. On the above list please circle the benefit(s) you wish to receive and cross-out the benefits you do not wish to receive. The Business Office (Insurance) will calculate whether there is a net cost payable by you: Cost you must pay

If a net cost figure is shown above, your signature below will authorize the District to adjust your regular pay in approximately equal installments during the school year.

If you are electing cash or benefit purchase credit in lieu of healthcare coverage, you must complete the following statement:

I have healthcare coverage under the

plan, and I wish to waive coverage for the upcoming plan year and to receive, instead, cash payments of \$ _____ paid in monthly \$ ____ installments.

I have read and understand the explanation of the flexible benefits program offered by the District and I understand that my election above is irrevocable for the upcoming plan year unless I have a change in family status. I also understand that I cannot elect the cash payment in lieu of healthcare coverage unless I have alternate coverage (which I have indicated above).

	_		•
. ,	:		Employee
Date:		, ,	
		· .	Employee, 's Spouse, if applicable
-	٠		(to be obtained only if the employee elects the cash payments)

A "plan year" is the twelve-month period beginning on October 1 and ending the following September 30.

 $[^]st$ Copy information from ID card. .

CATEGORY D ELECTION FORM (Certain Employees working less than full time whose Percentage of Full Time remains as specified.)

Full Time remains as specified.)
This form must be completed and returned to the Business office (Insurance).
Name of Employee
Return Deadline: • Continuing Employees: September 30, for the following plan year.*
 Newly-hired employees: 30 days after startin work.
Percentage of full-time specified in contract %
Fringe Benefit Cost (Purchase Credit if benefit not elected):
"Full-time" Your Cost/Credit. Employee (based on above %
• Healthcare (choose one) Current Medical Plan \$ \$
BC/BS Community Blue PPO with \$
Cash Payment, or \$ \$
Additional Life \$ - \$
• Vision \$
Life/AD & D
Short-Term Disability \$
Long-Term Disability \$\$
• Legal \$
TOTAL \$ \$
NOTE: You may elect cash (paid as additional taxable compensation) in lieu of healthcare benefits. If you do not elect cash in lieu of healthcare benefits, then you will not receive any purchase credits based on healthcare.
The total amount of additional cash compensation is an annual amount equal to the above percentage, multiplied by \$1,200. In your case this equals \$ If you wish to receive cash in lieu of healthcare coverage please check this box:
You may not elect cash in lieu of any other fringe benefit, except for the PPO option as indicted above.
On the above list please circle the benefit(s) you wish to receive and cross-out the benefits you do not wish to receive. The Business Office (Insurance) will calculate whether there is a net cost payable by you:
. Cost you must pay \$

Form D-1 (p. 1)

If a net cost figure is shown above, your signature below will authorize the District to adjust your regular pay in approximately equal installments during the school year.

If you are electing cash or benefit purchase credit in lieu of healthcare coverage, you must complete the following statement:

I have healthcare coverage under the

[company name; group no. or confized no.]]

plan, and I wish to waive coverage for the upcoming plan year and to receive, instead, cash payments of \$_____ paid in monthly \$ installments.

I have read and understand the explanation of the flexible benefits program offered by the District and I understand that my election above is irrevocable for the upcoming plan year unless I have a change in family status. I also understand that I cannot elect the cash payment in lieu of healthcare coverage unless I have alternate coverage (which I have indicated above).

Date:				
			Employee	
Date:	£			
		. •	Employee,'s Spouse, if (to be obtained onl	v if the
;			employee elects the cash	payments)

^{*.} A "plan year" is the twelve-month period beginning on October 1 and ending the following September 30.

Copy information from ID card.

CATEGORY E ELECTION FORM (Employees in twinned postions not previously identified)

This	form must be complete	d and retu	rned to	the Bus:	iness of	fice (Insu:	rance).
Name	e of Paired-Employees	A		P. C.			
	•	· 					·
ŧ	Return Deadline: • S	B. eptember	30, for	the foll	owing p.	ian year.# "	
Indic enter	cate which District-pa ring his/her letter des	id Fringe ignation	Benefit (A or B)	is all in the	Located space op	o a given pposite the	Employee by Benefit:
Fring	e Benefit:		Employee	(A or E	3)		· · ·
Curre:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		,			r más a Langua	
	AD & D -Term Disability Term Disability						
- Seco all	Benefit Costs if eit Cocated coverage: Healthcare (choose one Current Medical Plar	·	yee wis	nes to p	purchase	coverage	in addition
ø V	BC/BS Community Blue Cash Paymer Additional Dental Sision ife/AD & D	it, or		\$ \$ \$ \$ \$			
s Si	hort-Term Disability ong-Term Disability egal			\$ \$ \$			
healthc. The	n Paired-Employees ha ay receive cash (pai are benefits. e total amount of additi nefits is an annual amount e Employee receive cash in the name of the Employ	onal cash of equal to see the control of the contro	compensati	taxable on to be id to one	paid if	both declin	n lieu of e healthcare wish to have

Neither employes the PPO option a	e may elect cash in is indicted above.	lieu of any other Fr	inge Benefits, exc	ept for
benefits he/she	g list each employee ne wishes to purcha does not wish to pur st payable by each em	se and (2) write : chase. The Busines	in "yes" to indica in "no" to indica s Office (Insuranc	ite the
Current 1	(choose one) Medical Plan munity Blue PPO with Cash Payment, or Additional Life	Employee A	Employee B	4
Dental Vision Life/AD & D				,
Short-Term ILong-Term DiLegal	. -			
•	For Employee A For Employee B	: : \$ \$		
f a cost figure in a djust your recear.	s shown above, your Jular pay in approxi	signature below will mately equal install	— l authorize the Di: ments during the :	strict school
f one Employee i ust complete the orm:	s to receive cash to following information	in lieu healthcare. on, and (if married,	coverage, each Emp spouses must sig	ployee
Employee A	☐ I have healthcare	c coverage under the	<u>.</u>	
Employee B	O I have healthcare [company name; group no		- .	

We have read and understand the explanation of the flexible benefits program offered, by the District and we understand that our elections above are rrevocable for the upcoming plan year unless we have a change in family status.

Let a lead to the cash payment in lieu of healthcare coverage unless I have alternate coverage (which I have indicated above).

Date:	 			
·			Employee A	
Date:.	₹ ₹	·		
	,		Employee A's Spouse, if application (to be obtained only if the employee elects the cash payment or purchase credit in lieu of healthcare coverage) (to be obtained only if the employee elects the cash payment	t
Date: .	•			
			Employee B	
•		• • •	White Control of the	
Date:				
			Employee B's Spouse, if applicab (to be obtained only if the employee elects the cash payment or purchase credit in lieu of	1.
			healthcare coverage) (to be obtained only if the employee elects the cash payment	ສ)້

^{*} A "plan year" is the twelve-month period beginning on October 1 and ending the following September 30.

^{*} Copy information from ID card.

SCHEDULE D SCHOOL SCHEDULES 2015 - 2018

NOTE: Article VII, Section F of the GCEA Master Agreement does not apply to building bell schedules marked with an asterisk (*) within Schedule D.

GARDEN CITY HIGH SCHOOL SCHEDULE

7:15	Teacher reporting time
7:20 - 8:18 8:23 - 9:26 9:31 - 10:29 10:34 - 12:13 12:18 - 1:16 1:21 - 2:20	1 st Period (58 minutes) 2 nd Period (63 minutes) 3 rd Period (58 minutes) 4 th Period & Lunch (99 minutes) 5 th Period (58 minutes) 6 th Period (59 minutes)
2:35	Teacher leave time
7:20 — 10:35	Half Day Schedule

GARDEN CITY MIDDLE SCHOOL

7:35	Teacher reporting time
	1 st Period (60 minutes) 2 nd Period (60 minutes) 3 rd Period (60 minutes) 4 th Period & Lunch (95 minutes) 5 th Period (60 minutes) 6 th Period (60 minutes)
2:55	Teacher leave time
7:40 - 10:58	Half Day Schedule

BURGER BAYLOR SCHEDULE*

8:00		Teacher reporting time		
8:05 8:05 - 9:05 9:05 - 10:05 10:05 - 11:05		Bell rings 1 st Period (60 minutes) 2 nd Period (60 minutes) 3 rd Period (60 minutes)		
11:05 - 11:18 11:18 - 11:20 11:20 - 11:50		Homeroom (13 minutes) Passing time to lunch Lunch		ı
11:55 - 12:55 12:55 - 1:55 1:55 - 2:55		4 th Period (60 minutes) 5 th Period (60 minutes) 6 th Period (60 minutes)		
2:55 – 3:00		Homeroom (5 minutes)		
3:00		Dismissal		
3:05		Teacher leave time	. :	
8:05 – 11:23	: ·	Half Day Schedule		
	*(, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			

BURGER TRANSITION CENTER SCHEDULE*

8:10	Teacher reporting time
8:15 8:15 ~ 9:15 9:15 ~ 10:15 10:15 ~ 11:15	Bell rings 1 st Perìod (60 minutes) 2 nd Period (60 minutes) 3 rd Period (60 minutes)
11:15 - 11:28	Homeroom (13 minutes)
11:28 - 11:30 11:30 - 12:00	Passing time to lunch Lunch
12:05 - 1:05 1:05 - 2:05 2:05 - 3:05	4 th Period (60 minutes) 5 th Period (60 minutes) 6 th Period (60 minutes)
3:05 – 3:10	Homeroom (5 minutes)
3:10	Dismissal
3:15	Teacher leave time
8:15 - 11:33	Half day Schedule

LATHERS EARLY CHILDHO	DOD & KINDERGARTEN CENTER SCHEDULE Teacher reporting time
8:50 9:05 - 10:05 10:05 - 11:05 11:05 - 12:05	Bell rings 1 st Period (60 minutes) 2 nd Period (60 minutes) 3 rd Period (60 minutes)
12:05 - 12:10 12:10 - 12:51	Passing time to lunch Lunch
12:56 - 1:56 1:56 - 2:56 2:56 - 3:56	4 th Period (60 minutes) 5 th Period (60 minutes) 6 th Period (60 minutes)
4:05	Dismissal
4:05	Teacher leave time
8:50 - 12:10	Half Day Schedule
MEMORIAL 1-2 CAMPUS S 8:36	SCHEDULE* Teacher reporting time
8:41 8:55 9:55 9:55 10:55	Bell rings 1 st Period (60 minutes) 2 nd Period (60 minutes)
10:55 - 11:00 11:00 - 11:21	Passing time to lunch A1 Lunch

A2 Lunch 3rd Period (62 minutes)

Half Day Schedule

11:21 - 11:41 11:46 - 12:48

8:41 - 11:59

DOUGLAS 3-4 CAMPUS SCHEDULE*

7:55	Teacher reporting time
8:00	Bell rings
8:10 - 9:10	1st Period (60 minutes)
9:10 - 10:10	2 nd Period (60 minutes)
10:10 - 11:10	3 rd Period (60 minutes)
11:10 - 11:15	Passing time to lunch
11:15 - 11:36	A1 Lunch
11:36 - 11:56 *	A2 Lunch
12:01 - 1:01	4 th Period (60 minutes)
OR	
11:10 - 12:10	4 th Period (60 minutes)
	Passing time to lunch
	B1 Lunch
12:36 - 12:56	B2 Lunch
1:01 - 2:01	5 th Period (60 minutes)
	6 th Períod (60 minutes)
3:14	Dismissal
3:15	Teacher leave time
8:00 - 11:18	Half Day Schedule
FARMINGTON E-E CAMPUS SCHEDI	11 亡井

EADMINICTON		CAMPUS SCHEDILLE*
PARIVINGTON	2-0	CAMPUS SCHEDINES

8:18 - 11:36

FARMINGTON 5-6 CAMPUS SCH	HEDULE*
8:13	Teacher reporting time
8:18	Bell rings
8:30 - 9:30	1 st Period (60 minutes)
9:30 - 10:30	2 nd Period (60 minutes)
10:30 - 11:30	3 rd Period (60 minutes)
11:30 - 11:35	Passing time to lunch
11:35 - 11:56	A1 Lunch
11:56 - 12:16	A2 Lunch
12:21 - 1:21	4 th Period (60 minutes)
OR	
11:30 - 12:30	4 th Period (60 minutes)
12:30 - 12:35	Passing time to lunch
12:35 - 12:56	B1 Lunch
12:56 - 1:16	B2 Lunch
	1
1:21 - 2:21	5 th Period (60 minutes)
2:21 - 3:21	6 th Period (60 minutes)
3:32	Dismissal
3:33	Teacher leave time

Half Day Schedule

SCHEDULE E CALENDAR

2015 - 2016

(yr	TH FR	2 9	13 14	20 21	27 28	
August 2015 (TW=0 day)	M T	5	12	19	56	
ust 201	1	4	11	18	25	
Aug	M	3	10	17	24	31

Septer	mper 20	15 (1=16	September 2015 (I=16 / TW=17)	
Σ	TU	^	H	Æ
	1	2	က	7
7	8	6	10	11
14	15	16	14	18
21	22	23	24	25
28	29	30		

Σ	_	%	표	FR
			1	2
5	9	7	8	6
12	13	14	15	16
19	20	21	22	23
56	27	28	29	30

	3 1	%	M T W TH 2 3 4 5	FR 6
- 1	밁	11	12	13
	17	18	19	20
	24	25	52	27

Dece	mber 20	15 (1=14	December 2015 (I=14 / TW=14)	£
Σ	2	>	Ŧ	胚
	П	2	ĸ	4
7	8	6	10	11
14	15	16	17	18
21	22	23	24	25
28	29	30	31	

5	
12	
19	
26	

Febru	lary 201	/ 91=1) 9	February 2016 (I=16 / TW=16)	
Σ	-	>	Ŧ	품
1	2	3	4	5
00	6	10	11	12
15	16	17	18	19
22	23	24	25	26
29				

Mar	ch 2016	March 2016 (I=18 / TW=18)	TW=18)	
Σ	₽	8	丰	Æ
	1	2	3	4
7	8	6	10	11
14	15	16	17	18
21	22	23	24	25
28	29	30	31	

1		A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR		
Σ	-	8	H	Æ
2	3	4	5	9
6	10	11	12	13
16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	56	27
30	31			

2	(-	•	
Σ	2	>	Ŧ	Æ
		1	2	3
9	7	8	6	10
13	14	15	16	17
20	21	22	23	24
27	28	29	30	

Semesters	9/9/2015 - 1/29/2016	I = 89 / TW = 92	2/1/2016 - 6/16/2016	1 = 86 / TW = 87	
	6		2/		

SCHEDULE E CALENDAR 2016 - 2017

AU	gust 201	August 2016 (TW=1 day)	day)	
\vdash	T	M	E	Æ
_	2	n	4	5
8	6	10	11	12
15	16	17	18	19
22	23	24	25	26
29	30	31		

מממ	september 2010 (I=17 / IW=2	2	- AA /
Σ	ΩL	*	王
5	9	7	8
12	13	14	15
19	20	21	22
56	27	28	29

FR

16 23 30

5	707 100	/ 17-1) 0107 IDM0100	W-41	
Σ	_	M	F	FR
3	4	5	9	7
10	11	12	13	14
17	18	19	20	21
24	25	56	27	28
31				

M T W TH FR 11	Nover	November 2016 (I=19 / TW=20)	16 (1=19	/ TW=20	((
1 2 3 8 9 10 15 16 17 22 23 24 29 30	M	_	8	H	FR
8 9 10 15 16 17 22 23 24 29 30		ਜ	2	8	4
15 16 17 22 23 24 29 30	7	8	6	10	11
22 23 24 29 30 29 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30	14	15	16	17	18
59	21	22	23	24	25
	28	59	30		

_	FR	2	6	16	23	30	
/ TW=17	TH	1	8	15	22	52	
December 2016 (I=17 / TW=17)	Λ		7	14	21	28	
nber 201	TU		9	13	20	27	
Decen	Σ		2	12	19	97	31

			* C. S. C. S.	
Σ	T	M	H	FR
2	3	4	5	9
6	10	11	12	13
16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	26	27
30	31			

8)	FR	2 3	9 10			
/ TW=1	프	CA	5	16	23	
7 (1=18	W	I	8	15	22	
February 2017 (I=18 / TW=18)	T		7	14	21	28
Februc	M		9	13	20	27

Mar	ch 2017	March 2017 (I=23 / TW=23)	(W=23)	
	D.	8	Ŧ	Æ
		1	2	3
9	7	8	6	10
13	14	15	16	17
20	21	22	23	24
27	28	29	30	31

8	7	14	21	28
— 王	9	13	20	27
W	2	12	19	56
-	4	11	18	25
	3	10	17	24
	T W TH	3 4 5 6	3 4 5 6 10 11 12 13 18	3 4 5 6 10 11 12 13 17 18 19 20

	1107/	May 2017 (1=21 / 1W=22)	V=24)	
Σ	_	>	Ŧ	꾟
1	2	က	4	-
8	6	10	11	17
15	16	17	18	15
22	23	24	25	26
29	30	31		

- 1	_	≯	H	FR
100	2	3	4	5
	6	10	11	12
	16	17	18	19
	23	24	25	26
	30	31	2	

٦	ne 2017	June 2017 (I=12 / TW=12)	M=12	
Σ	ΩL	3	 E	Æ
			1	2
2	9	7	8	6
12	13	14	15	16
19	20	21	22	23
56	27	28	29	30

		2
	- 9	ì
	4	2
	c	Ξ
	Q	μ
	3	2
	-	3
	U	7
	-	>
	2	Ó
	-	4
	5	۷
	-	ì
'n		

1/2 Day Students - Elementary

PD Day (Elem & MS) PD Day - District

Teacher Work Day

1st Day Class/Semester

SCHEDULE E CALENDAR

2017 - 2018

- N	-	///	ᄪ	EP
	-	^^	111	1
	1	2	3	4
7	8	6	10	11
14	15	16	17	18
21	22	23	24	25
28	29	30	31	

2	FR	1	8	15	22	29
/ TW=19	H		7	14	21	28
September 2017 (I=19 / TW=19)	W		9	13	20	27
lber 201	TU		5	12	19	97
Septem	Σ		4	11	18	25

Octo	oer 2017	October 2017 (I=22 / TW=22)	TW=22)	
Σ	_	*	F	Æ
2	3	4	5	9
6	10	11	12	13
16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	56	27
30	31			

Noven	ber 20	17 (1=19	November 2017 (I=19 / TW=20)	6
Σ	T	×	Ħ	FR
		П	2	3
9	7	8	6	10
13	14	15	16	17
20	21	22	23	24
27	28	29	30	

FR	1	8	15	22	29
TH		7	14	21	28
W		9	13	20	27
TU		5	12	19	56
Σ		4	11	18	25

Janu	ary 201	8 (1=17 /	January 2018 (I=17 / TW=18)	
	_	*	I	FR
1	2	3	4	5
8	6	10	11	12
15	16	17	18	19
22	23	24	25	79
29	30	31		

5	ary 201	8 (1=18 /	February 2018 (I=18 / TW=18)	
	Т	M	TH	FR
8 18			1	2
5	9	7	8	6
12	13	14	15	16
19	20	21	22	23
26	27	28		

ñ	March 2018 (1=21 / 1W=21)	/ 17=1)	(1Z=MI	
	TU	M	H	FR
			1	2
	9	7	8	6
	13	14	15	16
	20	21	22	23
1	27	28	29	30

Apri	1 2018 (1	April 2018 (I=16 / TW=16)	(91=/	
Σ	F	^	Ŧ	FR
2	3	4	5	9
6	10	11	12	13
16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	56	27
30				

Wa)	2010	Mdy 2016 (1=21 / 1W=22)	(==	
Σ	T	^	Ŧ	FR
	1	2	3	4
7	8	6	10	11
14	15	16	17	18
21	22	23	24	25
28	29	30	31	

Σ	_	>	Ŧ	FR
	1	2	3	4
7	8	6	10	11
14	15	16	17	18
21	22	23	24	25
28	29	30	31	

	FR	1	8	15	22	29
(M	H		7	14	21	28
/ =	M		9	13	20	27
June 2018 (I=11 / TW=11)	TU		5	12	19	56
	Σ		4	11	18	25

Semesters	9/5/2017 - 1/26/2018	I = 90 / TW = 94	1/29/2018 - 6/15/2018	I = 90 / TW = 91	
		_			

	7.00
	- 4
	2
	(
	3
	- 3
	Ü
	- 5
	- 7
	Ć
	_
	- 5

1/2 Day Students - Elementary

PD Day (Elem & MS)

PD Day

Teacher Work Day

1st Day Class/Semester

2015-16

Days of Instruction: 175

Teacher work days

Student first day

Sept 8 (Tues)

Sept 9 (Wed)

PD days

Nov 3 (Election day)

Jan 18 (MLK)

May 3 (Election day: MS/Elem only)

No school

Nov 26-27 (Thanksgiving) Dec 21-Jan 1 (Winter break) Feb 15-19 (Mid-Winter break)

Mar (SAT: HS only)

Mar 25- Apr 1 (Spring break) May 30 (Memorial day)

Half days

Nov (Fall conferences: all)

Nov 25 (Teacher release: conferences)

Jan 28 (Exams: Secondary only) Jan 29 (Exams/Records day: all)

Mar (SAT: HS only)

Apr (Spring conferences: Burger only; MS only: work day) May 27 (Teacher release: Elem only; MS/HS work day)

Jun 10 (Records day: Elem only) Jun 15 (Exams: Secondary only) Jun 16 (Exams/Records day: all)

Hours of Instruction

High School full day of 385 min, $\frac{1}{2}$ day of 195 min Middle School full day of 385 min, $\frac{1}{2}$ day of 195 min Elementary full day of 383 min, $\frac{1}{2}$ day of 193 min

2016-17

Days of Instruction: 180

Teacher work days

Aug 31-Sept 1 (Wed-Thurs)

Student first day

Sept 6 (Tues)

PD days

Nov 8 (Election day)

Jan 16 (MLK)

May 2 (Election day: MS/Elem only)

No school

Nov 24-25 (Thanksgiving) Dec 26-Jan 6 (Winter break) Feb 20-21 (Mid-Winter break)

Mar (SAT: HS only)

Apr 3-7, 14 (Spring break/Good Friday)

May 29 (Memorial day)

Half days

Sep 23 (common plan time: all) Oct 21 (common plan time: all)

Nov (Fall conferences: all)

Nov 11 (common plan time: all)

Nov 23 (Teacher release: conferences)

Jan 20 (Records day: Elem only) Jan 26 (Exams: Secondary only) Jan 27 (Exams/Records day: all) Feb 10 (common plan time: all)

Mar (SAT: HS only)

Mar 24 (common plan time: all) ,
Apr (Spring conferences: Burger only)

May 5 (common plan time: all)

May 26 (Teacher release: Elem only; MS/HS work day)

Jun 9 (Records day: Elem only) Jun 15 (Exams: Secondary only) Jun 16 (Exams/Records day: all)

Hours of Instruction

High School full day of 382 min, ½ day of 193 min Middle School full day of 381 min, ½ day of 193 min Elementary full day of 381 min, ½ day of 193 min

2017-18

Days of Instruction: 180

Teacher work days
Student first day

Aug 30-31 (Wed-Thurs)

Sept 5 (Tues)

PD days

Nov 7 (Election day)

Jan 15 (MLK)

May 8 (Election day: MS/Elem only)

No school

Nov 23-24 (Thanksgiving)

Dec 25-Jan 5 (Winter break)

Feb 19-20 (Mid-Winter break)

Mar (SAT: HS only)

Mar 30, Apr 2-6 (Spring break/Good Friday)

May 28 (Memorial Day)

Half days

Sep 22 (common plan time: all)

Oct 20 (common plan time: all)

Nov (Fall conferences: all)

Nov 17 (common plan time: all)

Nov 22 (Teacher release: conferences)

Jan 19 (Records day: Elem only)

Jan 25 (Exams: Secondary only)

Jan 26 (Exams/Records day: all)

Feb 9 (common plan time: all)

Mar (SAT: HS only)

Mar 23 (common plan time: all)

Apr (Spring conferences: Burger only)

May 4 (common plan time: all)

May 25 (Teacher release: Elem only; MS/HS work day)

Jun 8 (Records day: Elem only)

Jun 14 (Exams: Secondary only)

Jun 15 (Exams/Records day: all)

Hours of Instruction

High School full day of 382 min, ½ day of 193 min Middle School full day of 381 min, ½ day of 193 min Elementary full day of 381 min, ½ day of 193 min

GARDEN CITY PUBLIC SCHOOL GARDEN CITY, MI 48135 PROBATIONARY CONTRACT

TE	ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT
IN of	I WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals this day September,
6. Aı	. This contract is subordinate to the master agreement effective September 1, 2011 through ugust 31, 2014.
p	5. It is expressly understood and agreed that, teacher not having yet satisfactorily completed the elevant probationary period, this contract shall be a Probationary contract in accordance with the provisions of Act 4, Public Acts of Michigan, 1937, extra session (The State Tenure Law), as imended.
. <u>.</u> 1	4. The Teacher represents that by the day of September, he/she shall have qualified for the degree for which he/she is being paid according to the salary schedule, which shall be substantiated by proper accrediting transcripts, and in the event said Teacher shall not have qualified for the degree herein specified, this contract shall be null and void; notwithstanding that if such degree is attained that certification must also be received before the date above written. The District reserves the right to cancel this contract at any time during the period of this contract if the Teacher is without certification to legally qualify him/her to hold a teacher's contract.
	3. The District agrees to pay the Teacher a salary in the amount of for the term of this contract commencing on the day of September, in twenty-one (21) installments or twenty-six (26) installments and to afford the Teacher the same emergency and sick leave of absence granted to teachers under the policies established from time to time by the Board of Education of the District.
•	2. This contract shall be subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Michigan School Code and the Michigan Teachers' Tenure Act as to the right and obligation of both parties.
	1. The District agrees to hire the said, as a Teacher for theschool year consisting of 10 months, beginning September, and ending June, and the Teacher agrees to serve the District as a Teacher for the same period and to perform the duties required of him/her by law and to obey and fulfill the rules and regulations as established by the Board of Education of the District and to carry out its educational program and policies during the entire term of this contact.
	WITNESSETH:
	OF EDUCATION AND THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF GARDEN CITY, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, (hereinafter termed the DISTRICT), and (hereinafter termed the TEACHER).

GARDEN CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS GARDEN CITY, MI 48135 REGULAR TENURE CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT, entered into this day of A.D by and between the BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF GARDEN CITY, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, (hereinafter termed the DISTRICT), and (hereinafter termed the TEACHER).
WITNESSETH:
1. The District agrees to hire the said
policies established from time to time by the Board of Education of the District. 4. The Teacher represents that he/she holds all certificates and other qualifications required by law for the teacher of this District. The District reserves the right to cancel this contract at any time during the period of this contract if the Teacher is without certification to legally qualify him/her to hold a teacher's contract. 5. No Teacher employed in an administrative capacity or in a capacity other than as a classroom teacher shall be granted tenure in such capacity by virtue of the within contract of employment, but shall be such Teacher in any such capacity shall not be deemed a demotion with the provisions of Act 4 of Michigan Public Acts of 1937, extra session, as amended. Further, pursuant to the aforesaid Act 4 of the duty for extra pay.
6. This contract is subordinate to the master agreement effective September 1, 2011 through August 31, 2014.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals thisday of September,
TEACHER ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT

GARDEN CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS GARDEN CITY, MI 48135 SPECIAL CERTIFICATED TEACHER'S CONTRACT

•	THIS CONTRACT, entered into thisday of, A.D by and between the BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF GARDEN CITY, County of Wayne, State of Michigan, (hereinafter termed the DISTRICT), and (hereinafter termed the TEACHER).
	WITNESSETH:
	1. The District agrees to hire the said as Teacher for the school year consisting of Ten months, beginning September and ending June, and the Teacher agrees to serve the District as a Teacher for the same period and to perform the duties required of him/her by law and to obey and fulfill the rules and regulations as established by the Board of Education of the District and to carry out its education program and policies during the entire term of this contract.
	2. This contract shall be subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Michigan School Code and the Michigan Teachers' Tenure Act as to the right and obligation of both parties.
	3. The District agrees to pay the Teacher a salary in the amount of for the term of this contract, commencing on the day of September, in twenty-one (21) installments, () or twenty-six (26) installments, () and to afford the Teacher the same emergency and sick leave of absence granted to teachers under the policies established from time to time by the Board of Education of the District.
	4. The Teacher represents that by theday of September, he/she shall have qualified for the degree for which he/she is being paid according to the salary schedule, which shall be substantiated by proper accrediting transcripts, and in the event said Teacher shall not have qualified for the degree herein specified, this contract shall be null and void; notwithstanding that if such degree is attained that certification must also be received before the date above written.—The Teacher does hereby agree to obtain a renewal of certification from the State Board of Education on or before the day of September, and also that the said certificate shall be duly filed with the District on or before the day of September, Otherwise this contract shall be null and void and of no force and effect.
	5. This contract is subordinate to the master agreement effective September 1, 2011 through August 31, 2014.
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals thisday of September,
	TEACHER ASSOCIATE SUPERINTENDENT

AGREEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Date	Date
Signature	Signature
WITNESS:	
this Agreement and Acknowle Voluntary Leave until I satisfy it required to complete the required Article VI, Section O, Subsection (Attached).	I provide appropriate evidence of full and nt, or if I do not comply with any term of edgment, then I will be placed on a set terms and conditions; unless I am not rements pursuant to my rights under 1, of the collective bargaining agreement
Education for the teaching of	ke myself eligible for, and receive, annual oval from the Michigan Department of terms of this Acknowledgment and he Association with the Board.
Paragraph 1 above, from an a than	Board, and to the Garden City Education of enrollment for the purpose specified in ppropriate college or university, no later
Garden City Education Associa my approval/endorsement.	nts to the Board of Education and to the tion by notarized copy of
and continuing approval	cessfully all the requirements to obtain full /endorsement as a teacher of I will provide immediate written proof of
	hereby agree and acknowledge as follows:
Wayne, State of Michigan.	employment by and with the Board of rict of the City of Garden City, County of

Garden City Public Schools Garden City, MI 48135

Letter of Understanding

MEMO TO:

Bonna Gadde, GCEA PR&R Committee

FROM:

Gary M. Murrell, Associate Superintendent

SUBJECT:

Autistically Impaired Program – Involuntary Placement

The following is provided pursuant to recent and former discussions between the administration and the association:

Teachers who voluntarily transfer to a position outside the program for the autistically impaired, before obtaining "full and continuing approval" to teach in the program for the autistically impaired, and subsequently teach a minimum of five (5) consecutive years in another Garden City teaching position(s), shall no longer be involuntarily placed back into a teaching position for the autistically impaired population. This specific placement practice shall retroactively apply to teachers involuntarily placed in the Burger Program for the 07-08 school year.

Such agreement is without prejudice and/or precedence to the position of the parties on any and all past, present and future situations.

ACCEPTANCE:			
For the GCEA:	•	e Visita	For the Board:
Bonna Gadde President, GCEA	-		Gary Murrell Associate Superintendent
Date			 Date

4/30/08:ssf

EdD	324	288	352	284	529	62,859	64,940	354	892	382	969	510	124	85,338	88,252	000 00
PhD/EdC	47,624	50,288	51,952	54,284	59,529											
					1.43	1.51	1.56	1.63	1.70	1.77	1.84	1.91	1.98	2.05	2.12	0
Ed Spec	45,292	47,956	49,621	51,952	56,615	59,945	62,026	64,940	67,854	70,768	73,682	76,596	79,510	82,424	85,338	01000
					1.36	1.44	1.49	1.56	1.63	1.70	1.77	1.84	1.91	1.98	2.05	070
MA+30	42,961	45,625	47,290	49,621	53,701	57,031	59,112	62,026	64,940	67,854	70,768	73,682	76,596	79,510	82,424	000 10
					1.29	1.37	1.42	1.49	1.56	1.63	1.70	1.77	1.84	1.91	1.98	400
MA+15					50,787	54,117	56,198	58,696	61,194	64,108	67,022	69,936	72,849	75,763	778,677	00000
					1.22	1.30	1.35	1.41	1.47	1.54	1.61	1.68	1.75	1.82	1.89	10
MA	38,299	40,963	42,628	44,626	47,873	51,203	53,284	55,782	58,280	60,777	63,691	66,605	69,519	72,433	75,763	AN WHA
					1.15	1.23	1.28	1.34	1.40	1.46	1.53	1.60	1.67	1.74	1.82	70.7
BA + 15			a		44,542	47,873	49,954	52,035	54,117	56,615	59,112	62,026	64,940	67,854	70,768	
					1.07	1.15	1.20	1.25	1.30	1.36	1.42	1.49	1.56	1.63	1.70	
B.A	33,303	35,968	37,632	39,298	41,628	44,959	47,040	49,122	51,203	53,701	56,198	59,112	62,026	64,940	67,854	
	1.03	1.03	1.03	1.03	1.00	1.08	1.13	1.18	1.23	1.29	1.35	1.42	1.49	1.56	1.63	-
Step	P1	P2	P3	P4	0	-	2	က	4	2	9	7	80	G	10	7 7

Longevity paid	years 20 -24	\$1,000.00
	years 25 - 29	\$1,500.00
	years 30 or more	\$2,000.00

Step 0 will be considered the "BA base" for which all Schedule B pay and part-time hourly rates are calculated P1 will be considered the base for which all voluntary extra duty assignment hourly rates are calculated Does not apply to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter Applies only to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter

1. All figures rounded to the nearest dollar

2. Up to eleven (11) years total is allowed on the salary schedule for outside military and teaching experience singly, or in combination for the school year 2011-2012. Two years military experience equals one year on the schedule to a maximum of two years on the salary schedule for maximum service.

The M.S.W. degree will be paid at Masters+15 hours, and all residue of semester hours beyond the M.A.+15 will be applied to the M.A.+30.

4. Teachers with vocational certificates and teaching high school students for which vocational reimbursement shall not be paid a salary higher than that indicated in Schedule AAA, except that teachers who received two years' credit for business education or three years' credit for vocational industrial arts in 1970-71 through 1982-83 shall continue to eceive such credit prorated to the portion of the day in which they are involved in such programs.

All salaries on individual contracts will be balanced in accordance with past practice.A teacher in pay status for two-thirds (2/3) of the schedule working days of a semester will receive one-half

(1/2) a year experience credit on the salary schedule for that semester.

4% Off Schedule Reduction Based Schedule A 2012-2013 GCEA

Step	B.A		BA + 15		MA		MA+15		MA+30		Ed Spec		PhD/EdD
P1 1.03	33,303				38,299				42,961		45,292		47,624
P2 1.03	35,968				40,963				45,625		47,956		50,288
P3 1.03	37,632		,		42,628				47,290		49,621		51,952
P4 1.03	39,298				44,626				49,621		51,952		54,284
0 1.00	39,963	1.07	42,761	1.15	45,958	1.22	48,755	1.29	51,553	1.36	54,350	1.43	57,148
1 1.08	43,161	1.15	45,958	1.23	49,155	1.30	51,952	1.37	54,750	1.44	57,547	1.51	60,345
2 1.13	45,159	1.20	47,956	1.28	51,153	1.35	53,951	1.42	56,748	1.49	59,545	1.56	62,343
3 1.18	47,157	1.25	49,954	1.34	53,551	1.41	56,348	1.49	59,545	1.56	62,343	1.63	65,140
4 1.23	49,155	1.30	51,952	1.40	55,949	1.47	58,746	1.56	62,343	1.63	65,140	1.70	67,938
5 1.29	51,553	1.36	54,350	1.46	58,346	1.54	61,544	1.63	65,140	1.70	67,938	1.77	70,735
6 1.35	53,951	1.42	56.748	1.53	61,144	1.61	64,341	1.70	67,938	1.77	70,735	1.84	73,532
7 1.42	56,748	1.49	59,545	1.60	63,941	1.68	67,138	1.77	70,735	1.84	73,532	1.91	76,330
8 1.49	59,545	1.56	62,343	1.67	66,739	1.75	69,936	1.84	73,532	1.91	76,330	1.98	79,127
9 1.56	62,343	1.63	65,140	1.74	69,536	1.82	72,733	1.91	76,330	1.98	79,127	2.05	81,925
10.1.63	65,140	1.70	67,938	1.82	72,733	1.89	75,531	1 98	79,127	2.05	81,925	2.12	84,722
11				1 94	77 500	1 07	78 728	205	81 975	010	667 29	9 19	87.510

Longevity paid	years 20 -24	\$1,000.00
	years 25 - 29	\$1,500.00
	vears 30 or more	\$2,000.00

Step 0 will be considered the "BA base" for which all Schedule B pay and part-time hourly rates are calculated P1 will be considered the base for which all voluntary extra duty assignment hourly rates are calculated Does not apply to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter Applies only to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter 4 PERCENT OFF SCHEDULE REDUCTION, EXCLUDING STEPS P1-P4 (based on 2011-2014 Schedule A) 2012-2013 - STEP INCREASES REINSTATED

- All figures rounded to the nearest dollar
- shall not be paid a salary higher than that indicated in Schedule AAA, except that teachers who received two years' outside military and teaching experience singly, or in combination for the credit for business education or three years' credit for vocational industrial arts in 1970-71 through 1982-83 shall 4. Teachers with vocational certificates and teaching high school students for which vocational reimbursement school year 2011-2012. Two years military experience equals one year continue to eceive such credit prorated to the portion of the day in which they are involved in such programs. on the schedule to a maximum of two years on the salary schedule for 2. Up to eleven (11) years total is allowed on the salary schedule for maximum service.
- 3. The M.S.W. degree will be paid at Masters+15 hours, and all residue 6. A teacher in pay status for two-thirds (2/3) of the schedule working days of a semester will receive one-half (1/2) a year experience credit on the salary schedule for that semester. of semester hours beyond the M.A.+15 will be applied to the M.A.+30.
- All salaries on individual contracts will be balanced in accordance with past practice.

	B.A		BA + 15		MA		MA+15		MA+30		Ed Spec		PhD/EdD
1.03	33,303				38,299				42,961		45,292		47,624
1.03	35,968		•		40,963				45,625		47,956		50,288
1.03	37,632				42,628				47,290		49,621		51,952
1.03	39,298		1		44,626				49,621		51,952		54,284
00	39,963	1.07	42,761	1.15	45,958	1.22	48,755	1.29	51,553	1.36	54,350	1.43	57,148
80.1	43,161	1.15	45,958	1.23	49,155	1.30	51,952	1.37	54,750	1.44	57,547	1.51	60,345
1.13	45,159	1.20	47,956	1.28	51,153	1.35	53,951	1.42	56,748	1.49	59,545	1.56	62,343
1.18	47,157	1.25	49,954	1.34	53,551	1.41	56,348	1.49	59,545	1.56	62,343	1.63	65,140
1.23	49,155	1.30	51,952	1.40	55,949	1.47	58,746	1.56	62,343	1.63	65,140	1.70	67,938
1.29	51,553	1.36	54,350	1.46	58,346	1.54	61,544	1.63	65,140	1.70	67,938	1.77	70,735
1.35	53,951	1.42	56,748	1.53	61,144	1.61	64,341	1.70	67,938	1.77	70,735	1.84	73,532
1.42	56,748	1.49	59,545	1.60	63,941	1.68	67,138	1.77	70,735	1.84	73,532	1.91	76,330
1.49	59,545	1.56	62,343	1.67	66,739	1.75	69,936	1.84	73,532	1.91	76,330	1.98	79,127
1.56	62,343	1.63	65,140	1.74	69,536	1.82	72,733	1.91	76,330	1.98	79,127	2.05	81,925
1.63	65,140	1.70	67,938	1.82	72,733	1 89	75,531	1.98	79,127	2.05	81,925	2.12	84,722
				1 0.4	77 590	107	79 798	906	81 095	9 49	84 739	9.40	87.510

Longevity paid years 20 -24 \$1,000.00 years 25 - 29 \$1,500.00 years 30 or more \$2,000.00

Step 0 will be considered the "BA base" for which all Schedule B pay and part-time hourly rates are calculated P1 will be considered the base for which all voluntary extra duty assignment hourly rates are calculated Does not apply to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter Applies only to those hired for the 2010-2011 school year and thereafter

4 PERCENT OFF SCHEDULE REDUCTION, EXCLUDING STEPS P1-P4 (based on 2011-2014 Schedule A) 2013-2014 - 1/2 step increase in salary, but full step is realized at year end.

Notes:

- 1. All figures rounded to the nearest dollar
- Up to eleven (11) years total is allowed on the salary schedule for outside military and teaching experience singly, or in combination for the school year 2011-2012. Two years military experience equals one year on the schedule to a maximum of two years on the salary schedule for maximum service.
- The M.S.W. degree will be paid at Masters+15 hours, and all residue of semester hours beyond the M.A.+15 will be applied to the M.A.+30.
- shall not be paid a salary higher than that indicated in Schedule AAA, except that teachers who received two years' credit for business education or three years' credit for vocational industrial arts in 1970-71 through 1982-83 shall 4. Teachers with vocational certificates and teaching high school students for which vocational reimbursement continue to eceive such credit prorated to the portion of the day in which they are involved in such programs.
- 5. All salaries on individual contracts will be balanced in accordance with past practice.
- 6. A teacher in pay status for two-thirds (2/3) of the schedule working days of a semester will receive one-half (1/2) a year experience credit on the salary schedule for that semester.

GARDEN CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS Garden City, Michigan

Teacher Evaluation Handbook

June, 1980

Dr. J. Michael Washbum, Superintendent

Evaluation Study Committee

Pat Pehrson, Douglas School Bill Deighton, Radcliff Junior High Terry Qua, East/West High Schools Mike Revers, Pre Voc, Vogel Center Wendy Betway, Marquette Center Neil Hamlin, Cambridge Junior High

Harold Estelle, Douglas School
Charles Gumina, Cambridge Junior High
James Niland, West High School
Margaret Naumes, Special Services
Dick Enos, Department of Curriculum Services
Don Beatty, Deputy Superintendent

Contents

- I. Purpose
- II. Summary of Process
- III. Guidelines for the Process
 - A. Legal Relationships
 - B. Goal Statement Process
 - C. Interim Years Between Formal Evaluation
- IV. Evaluation Calendar
- V. Teacher Self-Evaluation Form
- VI. Summary Evaluation Report

Purpose

In an effort to open communication between administrators and teachers, and believing that evaluation is an important element if the improvement of the quality of the Garden City Public Schools, it has been determined that the purpose for the evaluation process are:

- A. To improve the quality of instruction.
- B. To provide a method of evaluation which recognizes the professional status, responsibility, individual dignity and personal rights of the teachers and administrators.
- C. To encourage self-improvement on the part of the teacher.
- D. -To provide an opportunity for communication and shared decision-making between teachers and the administration.
- E. To provide an opportunity for administrative support to teachers as they work toward individual, grade level, department and district goals.
- F. To provide a format of consistency in the evaluation process through the district.

II. Summary of Process

Prior to evaluation a set of goals for the district, bulldings, departments and grade levels will be developed and revised annually. These goals will be published and made available to each employee early in the school year.

Each teacher will complete a self-evaluation, review the goal statements and plan personal goals for the year:

Early in the year, the teacher and supervisor will meet to develop a mutual set of goal statements.

Observations and progress review meetings will take place as often as needed by either the teacher and/or the supervisor.

Prior to June 1, the teacher and supervisor will meet and mutually develop the Evaluation Summary Report to be filed with the personnel department.

III. Guildelines for the Process

- A. Legal Relationships
- No part of this process is intended to limit or change employee, administrator or employer rights under the Tenure Act, association contracts, Board of Education Policy or applicable laws.

B. Goal Statement Process

1. Purpose: To encourage self-improvement on the part of the teacher and the instructional program,

2. Characteristics:

- (a) Goals should be meaningful and not necessarily limited to the items on the self-evaluation checklist.
- (b) Goals may be personal, in common with other teachers, all-school, or all-district in scope.
- (c) The goal should be shared with the administrator and mutually agreed upon.
- (d) Goals may be altered, amended, or revised through mutual agreement between the teacher and the administrator if it appears that the original goals are deemed unattainable, impractical, or simply misjudged.
- 3. Evaluation of Goals: .
- At the end of the evaluation period, the teacher and administrator shall mutually discuss progress toward goals.
- 4. Written Goal Statement Content:
 - (a) My goals for the year are:
 - (b) The resources I need are:
 - (c) My resources toward these gcals:

Appeals Process:

(a) Breakdown of mutual goal setting:

If the teacher and the administrator cannot reach agreement on mutual goals, each has the right to develop goals and attach rationale for the goals.

(b) Appeal of summary evaluation:

The teacher may appeal the final summary evaluation by attaching statements expressing the areas of concern and rationale for the teacher's position.

C. Interim Years Between Formal Evaluation

Teachers will complete self-evaluation forms and write personal goals. The teacher and administrator will meet during the first semester to discuss resources needed.

IV. Evaluation Calendar

Preparation

- 1. During the year, district goal will be provided to teachers for the following school year.
- Teachers and administrators will develop and distribute building goals for the school year.
- Teachers and administrators will develop and distribute grade level, departmental and program goals for the school year.
- 4. Goals will be shared district-wide.

Process Guidelines

- Interested teachers can request evaluation Administrators will identify teachers for evaluation.
- Teacher will complete a Self-Evaluation (please see form). Does not need to be shared. This involves personal goal setting and concerns.

 District, building and department goals will be provided for review.
- 3. Administrator can make class observation(s). If requested by the teacher or needed by the administrator, the observation will be scheduled at a mutually agreed upon time(s).
- 4. This mutual planning conference will take place. This involves discussion of general goals and concerns and the development of a statement of mutual goals.
- Progress exchange(s) can take place at the option of either party; these can be verbal or written. The teacher has the option to have a written response. Classroom observations are carried out as requested or needed.

Timeline

By April 30 of the previous year.

By October 15.

By October 31

By November 30

Teacher by October 15 Administrator by October 3.

Issue instrument to all teachers by September 3

To take place before the #4 conference

Set by mutual consent, but by December 7

No time limit

6. An evaluation conference will take place. (See Summary Evaluation Form) The evaluation should not be written before, the conference but can be developed in the conference by mutual agreement.

Set by mutual consent by May 15

 A summary written evaluation will be sent to the personnel department.
 The teacher has the right to attach a written response within five teaching days if desired.

By June 1

Teacher Self-Evaluation

Satisfactory Needs Improvement
G. Are my assignments reasonable and in keeping with the ability of individual students in my class?
H. Do I utilize supportive staff for students who have special needs?
Do I supply adequate plans for my substitute teacher which are clear, concise and easy to follow?
J. Do I keep accurate and adequate records indicating the progress of my students? Specific Area(s) of Conem
4. Classroom Management
A. Do I maintain a classroom climate conducive to learning?
B. Do I assume appropriate responsibility for the physical environment of the classroom?
C. Do I maintain consistent and reasonable classroom control?
Specific Area(s) of Concern
5. <u>Relationship with Students</u>
A. Do I establish and maintain good rapport with my students?
B. Am I sympathetic, patient and understanding; fair and impertial; sensitive to emotional nemy students?
C. Do I provide opportunities for students to develop self-discipline and responsibility?
D. Do students generally convey positive reactions to being members of my class?
E. Do I exhibit trust and respect for my students?
F. Do I help students develop a positive self-concept?
G. Do I help students to develop sensitivity to the rights and feelings of others?

.

• : .

√ Safisfa À	actory Needs Improvement
3	H. Are my grading policies within reasonable expectations of my students.
	Specific Area(s) of Concern
	er.
ş k	6. Relationship with Parents and Community
	A. Do I keep parents adequately informed of their children's status and progress and attendar
	B. Do I use discretion in discussing controversial school issues with community members?
	C. Do I use discretion in discussing professional competency of fellow staff members?
	D. Do I use discretion in discussing abilities, disabilities and activities of students?
	E Do I use discretion in discussing professional decisions made by staff and/or administrate
	F. Do I present a positive Image as a professional educator?
	G. Do I extend class activities to school community where such inter-action is mutually beneficial?
	Specific Area(s) of Concern
	7. Belationships with Staff
	A. Do I work harmonlously with members of school staff?
	B. Do I cooperate with other staff in the building, make positive contributions to harmonious congenial staff relationships?
	C. Do I assume a fair share of responsibility for the overall program in my school?
	D. Do I seek assistance of other staff members when needed?
	E Am I pleasant and reasonable in my relations with both instructional and non-instructional in my school?
	Specific Area(s) of Concern
• ***	

Satisfactory	Needs	Improvement .
		Professional Growth and Responsibility A. Do I take advantage of opportunities for professional growth and responsibility by panic in formal educational program, inservice, visitations, workshops and district study committees?
·	. *	Specific Area(s) of Concern
		9. Contributions to and Achievement of District and Building Goals A. Do I work towards achieving district and building goals?
	-	Specific Area(s) of Concern
	—	0. Progress Towards Mutually Set Goals . Were they achieved?
	S	pecific Area(s) of Concern
	11 · (E	. Other Comments by teacher and/or administrator on areas not covered above. xample: What supportive help do I need to achieve my goals.
\$	-	* 1

GARDEN CITY PUBLIC SCHOOLS

SUMMARY EVALUATION REPORT FOR CERTIFIED PERSONNEL

leacher's Name	School Year
Ourrent School/Assignment	=> Date of Report
Employment Status:	Date of Last Evaluation
1st year probation2nd year probation	Seniority Date
3rd year probation 4th year probation	Tenure
Grade Level(s) taught	
Secondary Subjects taught (Circle the above classes or grade level taught for the	first time)
Years in this building/department	
**************************************	· 京美宗安安中华中华中华中华中华中华中华中华中华中华中华中华中华
Satisfactory Needs Improvement	
1. Personal qualifies	
3. Development of effective learning experi	ences
oldos obin management	,
5. Relationship with students	
6. Relationship with parents and community	Ges.
7. Relationship with staff	
B. Professional growth and responsibility	

Satisfact	ory Needs Improvement			
		trict		
	10. Progress toward m	nutually set goals		
	11. Other			
•				
•	Additional na.	rrative attached		•
If an area nee improvement a	eds improvement the administrator mand support.	ust clarify the specific conce	rns and offer positive st	iggestions for
	; ***********************			
Recommended	for continued employment: Yesacher. Recommended Probat	No		
Administrative		Date		
-	CODY of this companies and order to			* *********
	copy of this evaluation and understand a	ecopy of this document shall be	e included in my personne	al file.
Teacher's Sign	ature	Date		
I plan to attach a r	response to this report: Yes	: No		·
Distribution: Original/Person Copy/Teacher Copy/Principal Copy/Program				
The teacher's signature topy of the evaluation	ure on this evaluation is not interpreted tion. This evaluation is considered by	as agreement, but only indica both parties a confidential con	ates that he/she has seen nonunication between the t	and received

Form #2-9-105 Revised: 2/15/95 rmc

EVALUATION PROCESS FLOW CHART

						173/60
	Board of Education	Superintendent	Dept Bilog Supervisor Principal	Grade Level Teachers	Teacher	District Wide
Goals Dorman dr. 11.						
A)III(II)(A)	District Goals	Instruction: &	Demoder			
	Hevised Annually	Department Bullding Goals Revised Annually	Octamor Program or Bullding Goals Revised Annually	Grade Level Goals Revised Annually	Self Evaluation or or Personal Goals Need not be shared	Sharing of Goals District Wide
Tron					Instructional Goals to be received by September 30	
Goals	By April 30th of Previous year Hevised Annually	By October 31 Revised Annually.		October 31 Revised Annually	Instructional Goals by October 31 Revised Annually	By November 30 Dane Annually
Time Line for			rievised Annually			
Evaluation Process Planning Contract		, <u></u>	Teachers may request by October 15 Administration will identify by October 31		Teacher may request by October 15 Administration will identify by October 22	
Mulua)			Department Heads and		Dringland Land	
		• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Teachers Principals and Teachers Progress Exchanges	<u> </u>	Mutual consent by December 7	
Class VIsita		_	No lime limit		No time limit	
Wilten Evaluations			As needed or requested	. P	As requested	
Annual Conferences		- -	Self Evaluation by September 30	lember 30	Sell Evaluation by September 30	ır 30
Appured Evel.	-	- · ·	Sel by Mulual Consent by May 15		Set by Mutual Consent May 15	
Summary Report by Mutual Agreement			Mutually Agreed upon by June 1		Mulually Agreed upon by June 1	
	-					

Prepared by : C. E. Gumina

EVALUATION LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

The parties agree to continue the evaluation process utilized prior to the evaluation unfair labor practice until a final determination is issued by MERC or the courts.

Should the Association prevail, the evaluation form, timelines and procedures will be considered part and parcel of the contract, and will not be altered unless negotiated and ratified by both parties. Accordingly, tenured members would not be evaluated more than once every three years, unless on a plan of assistance.

Should the district prevail, the evaluation format shall be considered guidelines for the duration of the contract.

For the Garden City Education Association			Date	: -
				e.
	1			
For the Garden City School District	-	-	Date	

DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This agreement shall be effective as of the first day of September, 2015 and shall continue in effect for three (3) years, until the thirty-first day of August, 2018. This agreement shall not be extended orally and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives.

BOARD OF EDUCATION SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF GARDEN CITY, WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN GARDEN CITY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

President

Secretary

Chief Negotiator

By Chief Negotiator

Laws currently in effect under PA103 Articles/sections (all or part) of GCEA Master Agreement effected by current laws

Article VI – Full-time member assignment
Sections A, B, D, E (excluding lines 9-19)
Sections F, G, I, K, L, M, N,
Section 0, Subsection 1 & 2
Section P, Subsection 2, 3, 4, 5
Section Q, Sentence 2

Article IX – Teacher Discipline Section A (last sentence), Sections C, G and H

Article XI – Teacher Evaluation Sections A – H and Sections J - R

Article XIV – Grievance Procedure Section $G-1^{st}$ sentence phrase: "layoff, recall & assignments"

Article XVIII – Part-time Members Sections A7, E, J, K, L, M

Article XXI Sections A, B

Article XXII

Sections A6, B, C, D (sentences 3, 5 & 6), Section E, Subsections 1 & 2; and 1st sentence of 3, Section F

Parties agree with the information provided above.

Julie Naughton 2

GCEA, President

Gary M. Murtell

Associate Superintendent

Dated: 10-23-12